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Council Chamber
CONVENE: 1:35 p.m.
PRESENT: Councilmember Donald G. Couch, Jr., Chair
Councilmember Gladys C. Baisa, Vice-Chair (out 4:35 p.m.)
Councilmember Elle Cochran
Councilmember Joseph Pontanilla (in 1:48 p.m.)
Councilmember Mike White

EXCUSED: Councilmember Danny A. Mateo
Councilmember Michael P. Victorino

STAFF:
ADMIN.:

Kimberley Willenbrink, Legislative Analyst
Clarita Balala, Committee Secretary
Michele McLean, Deputy Director, Department of Planning
Joseph Alueta, Administrative Planning Officer, Department of Planning
Simone Bosco, Senior Planner, Long Range Planning Division,
Department of Planning
Michael J. Hopper, Deputy Corporation Counsel, Department of the
Corporation Counsel

OTHERS: Paul Laub
(1) additional attendee
PRESS: Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.
CHAIR COUCH: . . . (gavel). . . Good afternoon. It is Monday, August 29, 2011 and it's
about 1:35 and this is the Planning Committee meeting for the Maui County
Council. First of all, I'd like to have everybody turn off your cell phones or other
noise-making devices. Light-emitting devices are okay for right now,
Member Cochran. . . .(Laughter). . . I wanna welcome the voting members.
Committee Vice-Chair Gladys Baisa.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: And Councilmember Elle Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha, Chair.
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CHAIR COUCH: And Councilmember Mike White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Hi, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: And excused are Council Chair Danny Mateo and Member Pontanilla
will be here shortly and Member Victorino. And we don't have any non-voting
Members here so we'll move right on. I wanna welcome Mr....I'm sorry.
Mr. Spence isn't here. It's Ms. McLean.
MS. MCLEAN: Good afternoon.
CHAIR COUCH: Good afternoon. And Mr. Alueta, Joe Alueta is a Planner and
Simone Bosco is a Planner in the back. And Michael Hopper, Deputy
Corporation Counsel. Good afternoon.
MR. HOPPER: Good afternoon.
CHAIR COUCH: And Committee Staff, Legislative Analyst, Kim Willenbrink and
Committee Secretary Clarita Balala. Good afternoon, ladies.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: All right, we're ready for public testimony. I have one person signed
up for public testimony. Just to remind the testifier, you're limited to the items on
our agenda today. Anybody else wants to testify just...they know to sign up in
the back. You have three minutes per item 'cause we have four items today and
they're all kinda inter-related. I, I will allow three minutes per item. And then
one minute to conclude at the end of all of those. And please state your name and
who you're representing. And our one and only testifier for now is Paul Laub.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .

guess
MR. LAUB: Aloha, I'm Paul Laub and I'm testifying on 5, 6, 7 and 8. So
I'll start on the B-1 Neighborhood Business District. These, these plans were
very important in setting up districts for use for commercial and industrial uses
and it became less and less important as those areas have developed their own
maturity and their own sense of being. What we have here are, like most things
nothing is perfect in life, but if we look at B-1 Neighborhood Business District
and we look at the possible uses, we find out that dentists and doctors' offices
aren't, aren't able to be there. Clothing stores are not allowed. Jewelry stores are
not allowed. Athletic equipment shops like fishing, et cetera, are not allowed.
Surfboard stores are not allowed and neither are bicycle shops. And what they
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say to do is that, okay, if it's not on our list, go to the Planning Commission which
takes months. Now in one of these specifically it allows skateboard shops. And I
went to the Planning Department and said, listen, if it has skateboards, can I put
my bicycle shop there? And they said, no, if you wanna have a bicycle shop you
have to go to the Planning Commission. And since that would take months, I just
did not open my business at that person's locale. When we go to B-2, we see that,
that's the one that had the skating but we also see that you can't have a surfboard
shop. You can't have a kayak shop. You can't have a fishing shop. You can't
have bicycle shops. It does say general merchandise and so the question is, is
general merchandise...does that mean a store that sells general merchandise that's
not in departments or does that mean a store that sells individual general
merchandise? So lack of clarity and it has the same situation if you wanna do
something different than what they specify, you have to go to the Planning
Commission which will takes months and a lot of money. If we go to the Central
Business District, clothing stores are not allowed. Jewelry stores are not allowed.
Shoe stores are not allowed. Surfboard shops are not allowed. Bicycle shops are
not allowed. However, it does allow for general merchandise and it does allow
for general offices. If we go to the Resort Commercial District, we see that shoes
are not allowed, jewelry is not allowed, food is not allowed, drugs are not, not
allowed, doctors' offices, dentists' offices, not allowed. And sports activity
shops, not allowed. Surfboard shops, not allowed. Bicycle shops, not allowed.
And it has interesting thing there in the B-R, it says specialty clothing. So what's
specialty clothing? Well, specialty clothing could be children's clothing so if you
have children's clothing, well, then you can't have adult clothing. Or if you have
logo clothing then it has to be a logo. So a, a shop like, well, a chain shop would
be allowed but it'd have to be a chain store so if you're an individual store you
wouldn't fit in specialty. I, I think that that should be changed that just if it's...if
specialty clothing is allowed then clothing in general should be allowed.
Now, what I'm trying to do is I'm, I'm trying to make things easier for people to
go into business, stay in the business, move. And for people to utilize their
buildings because if every time they have to make a change they have to go to the
Planning Commission, it's just way too hard. So when I was saying that these
were important for setting up districts, they are. So you have to determine where
you're gonna have your industrial district, where you're gonna have your light
industrial district. But once the, once these districts develop, like, for an example,
you don't have to say in Lahaina, you can't have a hay and feed store because you
can't afford it. There's no need for it. It won't exist. There's no demand for it.
The demand is gonna be for more expensive things that are gonna be related to
the visitors and the people. And the price is gonna keep out hay and feed stores.
And stores, if they're very popular, let's say...jewelry is really popular, then
you'll have a bunch of jewelry stores copying each other and the weaker ones fall
away. And the better ones, the cream rises to the top. So you don't have to
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control that. It's...that's done, that's done through just basic economics. Same
thing for clothing stores. The best use will prevail.
I think there's a easy way out of this. I think it's just really easy that, that maybe
can be done. And that would be that if it's not on the list, instead of requiring it to
go to the Planning Commission, perhaps approval by the Planning Department or
director and as, as, as one director said, they don't make the regulations, they,
they just try to follow `em. And with instructions to be liberal. If it seems like it
belongs in the area, then go with it. If it's a problem, then send it to the Planning
Commission. But if it's a, if it's a, a bicycle shop and you got a skateboard shop
is okay, then the bicycle shop should flow with it. Surfboard shops, kayaks,
fishing gear, that sort of thing. It...anyway, I wanna thank you very much for
your time, effort and energy which I know you put a lot into. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Laub. Members, any questions for Mr. Laub?
Hearing none, thank you. And no more testifiers? Without... . .(chuckles). . .
yeah, like, the only other audience member says no, so good. Without any
objection, we'll close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

CHAIR COUCH: Okay. All right, Members, we have four bills here that were
transmitted by the Planning Director to update the B-1 Neighborhood District,
B-2 Community District, B-3 Central... Business District, and B-R, the Resort
Commercial District including establishing standards for...accessory uses and
transient vacation rentals within those districts. I would like to take each bill up
separately, keeping in mind that many of the revisions will be similar in each bill
so let's keep that in mind when we go through. I would like the Department to
provide an overview for each item.
ITEM NO. 6: B-1 NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS DISTRICT (c.c. No. 11-84)

CHAIR COUCH: Let's start off with...we're gonna start off with PC-6 which is B-1.
There's a section 2.80(b).030(b) of the Maui County Code requiring that zoning
ordinance conform to the General Plan. These bills were reviewed by the
Planning Commission prior to the passage of the Countywide Policy Plan so there
may be some differences here. That's why we have Ms. Bosco here to keep us on
the straight and narrow on that one. Thank you, Ms. Bosco. Staff has a hard copy
of the Countywide Policy Plan if you need it for reference. Just grab it and she'll,
she'll be glad to get it down to you. We also provided definitions, 19.04.0 [sic].
There's...because a lot of things are referred to in these bills, I thought we should
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have the definitions before us so it wouldn't be...everybody wouldn't be saying,
well, what does that mean? So with that, let's start with Item No. PC-6 which is
B-1 Neighborhood Business Districts. Pick, pick one, any one.
MR. ALUETA: Okay, I'm sorry, Mr. Chair. We were just trying to figure what-CHAIR COUCH: That's okay.
MR. ALUETA: So just going over the, the...as far as the summary of the B-1 District,
we did transmit this up to...on February 17 th and there's a transmittal letter. And
it does have a summary of, not only the agency comments, the...the staff report
that was presented to the three commissions as well as the comments from the, the
various commissions to you. Also in the memo report that was done for the
commissions is a little summary of changes and the rationale for each one of the
different types of amendments that we...tried to recommend to the commissions.
And, again, this is part of our ongoing effort to update the Title 19 to try to
streamline the process, make it... simplify the Code and create a standard outline
or template that each of the chapters are following, primarily what's your allowed
use, what's considered an accessory use, what would we have as special uses.
And then what are gonna be the, the development standards and try to consolidate
those down into some type of table format so it's easier to understand. Interesting
thing about business district B-1 Neighborhood Business District is, unlike some
of the other business district, is that you do have a setback which is...which
mimics the residential setbacks, meaning you have a front yard and you have side
yard setbacks. And that's unusual for both the business and industrial districts for
commercial. It's intended to be on your...normally it's on the cusp of the edge,
or perimeter of a residential area. It sometimes will be a single-family house that
may have been converted. You know...it becomes a convenient location by, by
the...or by necessity or just by, like I said, by over time a convenience. And it's
sometimes often a converted single-family residence that has that characteristics.
And it's...SBR has that same situation that, that you, you saw earlier in, in those
Code amendments as well as the...which you will be seeing in the Business
Country Town Districts where they have these certain setbacks.
You'll also...some of the changes...the consolidation or to...consistency with
regards to the other sections is we tried to incorporate small-scale energy systems.
Again, dealing with allowing small wind turbines or photovoltaic systems. We
also did...created a...standards for what we call free standing antennas or wind
turbines and created a setback for those. We clarified what's gonna be an
accessory use. That's always a tricky situation. We just wanted to provide clarity
with regards to, you know, mail boxes, boundary walls, that are allowed within
the setback. I mean, we, we talked about this earlier with regards to the
agricultural district. We tried to clarify what can you have in the setback, what's
considered a structure that's...has to meet the setback requirement. And so we
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clear out... clarified what we, what we, what you can do on the property line but
within that setback area. B-1 also has, which is kind of unique for it, it has a
enclosure requirement, okay. So I put that in there also. And a lot of this and the
changes that were done is more form...I mean...we just changed over how we
organized things, tried to clarify it and tried to consolidate it down. Wherever
there was a requirement maybe for a commission requirement, we tried to move
to a director interpretation as far as authorization. One of the bigger changes that
occurred with the bill, I guess you could say, is...there was the hot topic which
was just...a transient vacation rentals which...or short-term rentals whichever it
can. Several years ago we had transmitted a bill up as part of the package for
transient vacation rentals. As part of that package, one was amendments to all of
the business districts to allow them. At the time we had put in 20 rooms for all of
the business districts. However, that met with some...I don't wanna say,
resistance, but just some concern. The, the model is kinda under the... Wailuku
Town in the MRA. Within the redevelopment area we allow for up to, up to
20-room hotels in the business mixed-use district without any other approval. It's
an allowed, it's an allowed use because we were trying to encourage it. If you
look at the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan, it's one of those things that
encourages to bring in type...that type of a mixed use into your business core. It
also caters more toward your business travelers. Maybe you're a visiting
attorney, or nurse or doctor to...so something outside of the resort areas. We did
the same thing here with...we tried to again insert some of that into some of the
more broader business...districts. And so I believe in the B-1...sorry...we did do
that. I believe it's eight rooms at this time. And, and then if someone wanted to
go greater, they could then seek a special use permit for up from 9 to 20 rooms.
There is one exception for Molokai which they don't want to have short-term
rentals in their business district and they would rather have all of the...any, any
TVR within the business district go before the Planning Commission for approval
in which they would then be able to determine how many rooms would be
allowed. That's pretty much it.
And if you look back at some of the...how the old ordinance was as far as the
setup and the different chapters, again, which we feel that this current method of
consolidating, putting them all in a standard table format especially with the
development standards, makes it a lot easier for a small-time business owner or
property owner of business district saying what can I build? And that's the most
common question, is what can I build, how big, what's my setbacks, how tall, and
then what can I do. And so we try to keep it that way. That's all I have for now,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. I wanted to refer everybody to...in Item No. 5, even though
we're working on 6 right now, but Item No. 5, Mr. Alueta referred to a kind of a
comparison to all the different districts. I encourage everybody to take a look at
that and, and really go through that because that says what uses in what district.
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It's kind of a matrix. It's just before the bill in, in Item No. 5. So take a look at
that. If we can get a...an updated version, too, if there's any, Mr. Alueta. That
would be nice as well, or soft copy of that.
MR. ALUETA: Just, just to let you, . .(chuckles). . that wasn't done by us. That was
done by one of our, our commissioners at the Maui Planning Commission, I
believe.
CHAIR COUCH: Oh.
MR. ALUETA: They submitted that and so we just...it was just transmitted up. Oh, I'm
sorry. It...that was actually done by Water Department. I'm sorry. It, it's
attached as...to the comments from the Water Department. It was an attachment.
CHAIR COUCH: This one.
MR. ALUETA: Yes.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: If you look on-CHAIR COUCH: Yeah.
MR. ALUETA: If you look at the end of-CHAIR COUCH: I thought it was a separate-MR. ALUETA: Of part of our transmittal. What happened was, when we went to the
commissions, we got most of the agency comments. If you look at it, Water
Department did not comment in time and so they submitted their comments after
the, the staff report was drafted and so we, we wanted to...we got those agency
comments after we were done and so we sent them up to you. And that's why it's
attached as part of that.
CHAIR COUCH: Oh, okay.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, those are agency comments received after the...
CHAIR COUCH: Can you develop something similar to this? 'Cause this is, this is the
perfect overview, you know, the usual comparison list as to what's--not, not at
this point but I mean in the future, for something that we can kinda take a look at
and so we can see at a glance what's permitted where and what not. And I think
this is a very useful tool. I spent a lot of time reading it this weekend.
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MR. ALUETA: Oh, okay. Yeah, no, that's, that's not a problem. We can work
something out for that.
CHAIR COUCH: All right, Members, I'd like to go through, since, since this was in the
order on the agenda, go through...just take a look if you have any questions for
the Department. If you have any suggested changes, I'd like to go through those
now before we do any kind of general motion, if we do a general motion today. I
think there's gonna be some issues that we may have to carry on beyond this
meeting. But if not, that's fine, too. But I wanna look at all of these kind of as a
whole before we do any kind of bringing things out of the, out of the Committee.
Michelle?
MS. MCLEAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just on the B-1 districts in particular, the only
substantive additions that are being proposed are adding recycling collection
centers, redemption centers and transient vacation rentals. The other lists...the
other uses that are listed in that table are taken from what was previously in the
district. So there're only those three additions as proposed additional permitted
uses.
And because the bills are numbered differently,
Okay.
CHAIR COUCH:
PC...Item PC-5 actually has the changes defined. They have the definitions
of...redemption center, recycling center.
MS. MCLEAN: Correct.
CHAIR COUCH: So...
MR. ALUETA: Correct.
MS. MCLEAN: Yep.
CHAIR COUCH: That's...okay.
MS. MCLEAN: There's definitions here on the B-2 bill rather on the B-1 bill.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. So if you have a question on the definition, that's gonna be on
the Item No. 5.
MS. MCLEAN: Listening to the testimony, though, we would be supportive of adding
the use of personal and business services to the B-1 district. That is a very broad
definition but the, the testifier raised a good point. The other thing for us to bear
in mind is that there are many properties in the County that already have these
zoning established for them so we wanna make sure that the existing permitted
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uses are retained so that we're not creating any non-conformities. And the
additions that, that we've proposed are in recognition of those uses that have
come before the Planning Commissions to get the okay that we've done
repeatedly. So now we're saying, you know, we've allowed these in these
districts before so now just make them a permitted use so we don't have to keep
going back to Planning Commission to get their okay.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Members, I'd like to open it up to questions or comments and
possible changes and we'll go through this bill for now and Staff will let us know
if that's taken into account on other bills. So maybe just wanna go in order, left to
right, my left to right for this time and then we'll...unless you had something?
Okay. Vice-Chair Baisa?
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. Chair, I'm looking at the bill in the
back of this section that we're working on, PC-6. And on Page 2 there's all these
tables and they're all...lot, lot of underlining. Are these underlinings all
additions?
CHAIR COUCH: Yes. If you look at Page 1 where it says-VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR COUCH: --19.16.020.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR COUCH: And it says, within the B-1 neighborhood-VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Right.
CHAIR COUCH: --business district, the following uses shall be permitted.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Right.
CHAIR COUCH: Then starting on Page 2, the A is-VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Right.
CHAIR COUCH: --the starting of the bracket.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Right.
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CHAIR COUCH: All the way down to R, is the closing of the bracket. So those are all
gonna be deleted. All that verbiage is gonna be deleted. And then the table's
gonna be inserted in its place.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: So the list that there was, was there before, is gonna be all gone.
CHAIR COUCH: Correct. It's gonna be turned into a table.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: And, and these underlined areas are going to be inserted instead.
CHAIR COUCH: That is correct.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Question in regards to this, how...what was the criteria to
decide what is in and what is out?
CHAIR COUCH: In, in the tables or...
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: In the new table.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Everything that's been bracketed out is
put in the table, the only reason we had to cross it out and then underline again is
because it was put into a table format. And that constitute as being added in.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: So this is-MR. ALUETA: So, so if you go, if you-VICE-CHAIR BAISA: This is just formatting, then? So what you did was you take it
out of one section, put it in another. But, really, there's not a change in the, in the
uses?
MR. ALUETA: That, that, that is correct. Just the three that we talked about which was
the...recycling collection centers, recycling redemption centers and then the
transient vacation rentals.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Okay. One of the testifiers brought something up that I found
was interesting. Testifier Laub mentioned that dentists and doctors were not
included in here. Can you explain why?
MR. ALUETA: They're normally found in the B-2...B, B-2 district. The Department
did not feel that we wanted to monkey, I guess, with the Code significantly.
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VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Yeah.
MR. ALUETA: And we felt that we wanted...it's, it's safer just to say, hey, this is all
we're doing. We're just adding the uses that are existing there now and just put
`em in the... table format. And then we added only the uses that we've had where
we know we have repeated...requests for, meaning...recycling centers and, and
redemption centers with regards to the HI-5 that has created an issue. So we
needed to have that made clear. Secondly, you also need to understand where
the...I guess the potential location of some of these business districts of the B-1 in
particular and given its setback. And that's why we didn't wanna add certain,
maybe, potential higher traffic or uses that we're not familiar with. If they wanna
be added, again, I believe my, my boss has indicated that she had no objections to
having personal business services.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Let, let me tell you what came to my mind immediately. I used
to be a patient of Dr. Moser. Remember that home down here in Wailuku, couple
streets down in a residential area? And I felt that home fit there so beautifully and
it was not an issue. So that, that's why it struck a chord with me. And I don't
know how much of that we have throughout the County but that was something
personally--it's still there. I remember we had to finally approve it after years and
years of them being there. Comment?
CHAIR COUCH: I actually...I have a question for Corp. Counsel. If we add something
like that, personal services and what not, is that a big enough change that it has to
go back to the Planning Commission?
MR. HOPPER: Oh, that, that, that, no. I mean you have a fair amount of freedom to add,
add in and delete uses I think in the business district because I think that's the
same thing the Planning Commissions did, was look through and decide to add or
delete a use. You have to go back to the Commission if maybe you decided, or if
someone decided to, you know, maybe amend a completely different section of
the Code that had nothing to do with the business district. But I think that would
be fine.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: No, I...that, that was the first thing that, that was on my mind. I
would give someone else a chance.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair Couch. And looking at the
recommendation from all the other Planning Commissions, I notice that the
agreement is with the recycling redemption centers and TVR operations. I'm
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noticing on Molokai they did mention the...in regards to their Molokai Planning
Commission being the determining body for accessory uses. Is that being
addressed in the new proposal or, I guess, the rule-making authority is the
Planning Director? Is that just to be consistent overall and not have to-MR. ALUETA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --piecemeal this?
MR. ALUETA: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And also in regards to the...adding the
small-scale energy systems, that's in this new proposal?
MR. ALUETA: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And just to make sure that the statement made by the
Molokai Planning provided that it doesn't have any negative type of impacts.
That's all included too, am I, am I correct to say?
MR. ALUETA: Yes. It-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The...it doesn't produce noise, dust, smells, fumes,
et cetera?
MR. ALUETA: Right. And that's...and it was a great suggestion and...by the Molokai
Planning Commission so we've, we've incorporated that suggestion in all of our
other bills which we added the provision of, provided there'll be no detrimental or
nuisance effect upon the neighbors. And that language is based upon the
Department's discussion with Corporation Counsel. And so...and, and if you've
looked back at all of our other amendments that we've sent up in proposals where
we've added small-scale energy, energy systems, small scale, we've added that
same criteria or limitations for all of them, for all those districts, so in the
residential, everywhere else.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Very good. Thank you, Department. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I have the same concern that the
testifier had with the list of permitted uses. And I understand--and thank you for
offering that the ones you've added are because of people coming to the...coming
to the Planning Commission--but that still leaves me feeling like we may be
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leaving people out that might make sense to include just because we're not aware
of, of what those, those businesses might be. And the question that I have is, why
do we care where a doctor wants to operate? If he wants to operate in a
neighborhood, if we put restrictions on parking or something to that sort, why
would we not want them operating close to our neighborhoods?
MS. MCLEAN: I, I believe the Department's approach was to not deviate too far from
the bill as it was written. I don't believe the Department set out to look at the
districts and say, okay, do we wanna start from scratch and how would we...what
uses would we put in the district? Partly being mindful that properties are zoned
with these designations and that we wanna make sure that those uses are retained.
And the uses that were added were done for specific reasons. We didn't just open
it up to what else might we want to include in the B-1 district. But it is...you
know, certainly there are...there could be potential existing uses that had to get
Planning Commission approval that may not be covered by this new language.
That, that's possible. If we do come across those, we can bring them back to
Council again to have those added. The definition of personal and business
services is pretty broad. So I think that would cover a fair amount of potential
uses. The B-1 neighborhood business district, as Joe mentioned, the setbacks
mimic the residential setbacks so it's trying to keep a smaller scale. And the
setbacks themselves would, would regulate the kinds of businesses that might go
in there-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, I don't have any with the setbacks. I think it-MS. MCLEAN: But we don't want, we don't want bigger, more intensive business uses
in these neighborhood business zones.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, no, I, I agree with, with those kinds of criteria.
I'm just concerned with the item that the testifier brought up that if you wanna
start a business that's not permitted, that means it's not permitted at all. And so
how long does it take for somebody who wants to start a business that's not
permitted to go through the process of, of achieving Planning Commission
approval?
MS. MCLEAN: That process isn't a public hearing item before the Planning
Commission so there isn't a neighborhood notification and so those kinds
of...that kind of time isn't built into the process. But it would still take a few
months, you know, for staff to put together a report, put together agency
comments if, you know, if, if we feel that agency comments are warranted. So it
would still take some time.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So before the director is comfortable making a
determination whether a barber shop can go in there, you have to do all the, all the
staff analysis?
MR. ALUETA: I can. The current Code basic is the Planning Commission and we've
left it that way. We did not drop that down to the determination of the
Commission--I mean, of, of the Director.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So that's, that's an option.
MR. ALUETA: That's...that, that is another option that you can have where it's a
similar type of use and intensity that the Director could make the, the call as to
whether or not it's similar and meets the, meets the purpose and intent of the
district.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, 'cause, you know, I think the compelling part of
the issue is if it's gonna take a long time to get a determination made because it's
gotta go through that process or go to the Planning Commission, that's when I
start saying, okay, where's the common sense here? And if we can, we can...I
have not problem setting up permitted which means everything else is not
permitted as long as the process for getting a determination is relatively, relatively
smooth. But another question I have was the...is...whereabouts are the
B-1 -zoned properties? Do you have a map that shows us generally where the B-1
and the B-2 and B-3 are located? Or does GIS have that?
MS. MCLEAN: The map is in Joe's head. . . .(Laughter). . .
MR. ALUETA: Yeah. If I can, if I may, Mr. Chair. I'll try not to digress too far off just
to, just to give you some background of and why it's kinda the...it's a very
interesting point with, with regards to the business...B-1 district. You, you kinda
started out, you know, probably in 90 percent of the municipalities across the
nation started out with this generic B-1, B-2, B-3 districts, okay. And, and on
Maui we've kinda morphed from our...and...to address some of the issues and
the constraints we've added what we call the BCT. And then we've added also
SBR recently. And so many of our...things that you would consider to be B-1 has
either been changed to a, to...BCT so a lot of the small towns like Paia, Makawao
and in Wailuku has B-1. And you probably most likely see them, I believe, B-1
might be on Market Street where the beauty shop is, and some, like I say, on the
perimeter. But a lot of those have been designated for, like, SBR now, in the
future. And it's, it's, it's slowly going the way of the dodo bird meaning people
are either upzoning it to the, to a B-2 so they don't that have that restriction or
their being slid over into the...what would you call the BCT. And so I, I kinda
agree with, with your line of thought and, and the testifiers--don't tell 'em that-but, but that we...that, you know, there has been a change, you know, as time
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goes on that we've kinda covered the things that we're trying to protect... that was
initially trying to be protected under the B-1. Those...properties sort of got slid
over into the BCT and got protected by different zoning category.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, so you're suggesting that the B-1 is not in, in use
in many places?
MR. ALUETA: Yeah. But there...I mean we can, we can probably generate a map for
you of these districts to show you where they're located. At the same, at the same
time, . . .(clears throat). . . excuse me, the intent was not to... . . .(coughs). .
MS. MCLEAN: What you doing?
MR. ALUETA: I know. The intent...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I take no responsibility for-MR. ALUETA: Yeah, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --getting you all choked up.
MR. ALUETA: I'm sorry. It's, it's a very emotional time. . . . (Laughter). . . But it's the
business district-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, this is an emotional issue.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah. But I think that, again, we didn't want to throw a lot at the
commissions as well as the Council on a dramatic overhaul of our business
districts. The initial intent was to kinda just clean up the glaring mistakes and
outdated terminology, put them into a sensible pattern or format and outline that
everybody can follow. And then, you know, add the...what do you call...add the
uses that is a low-hanging fruit that everybody agrees to. You know, everybody
agrees on a recycling center. Everybody agreed to, you know, collection center
and certain uses. And that's kinda where we went. So, and, we felt that if we
tried... if we opened up, okay, what other uses should be added, that, that weren't
there, it kinda...you kinda get into this tug of...war of well, does everybody agree
and not everybody is gonna agree. So we just took what everybody consistently
agreed upon. But, again, if you wanna expand it, that's at the purview of the
Council.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, I, I would prohibit...I would've preferred a list of
prohibitions 'cause that's a lot clearer to me but nevertheless, thank you. Thank
you, Chair.
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CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. White. And before we call on Mr. Pontanilla, I just
wanted to let the Committee know that, hey, we've got this bill in front of us. If
we feel...I think I'm open to if you feel if something needs to be inserted or
removed or redefined, this is a good time to do it. Don't, don't limit ourselves to
just the reformatting of the thing. It's perfectly okay with me to let's, let's get it
right if we, if we feel there's some issues here so have at it. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. So Mr. Alueta, so the
SBR is gonna be changed to B-1?
MR. ALUETA: No, no. There's currently a... Service Business Residential district that
this Council has already adopted, okay, and it follows the format and it has certain
uses that are...you know, and the setbacks and design of it is very similar between
the cross between the BCT and the B-1. During the last Community Plan update,
the...Hana and as well as Wailuku designated certain properties as SBR but they
couldn't be rezoned into an SBR district because it did not exist until the Council
adopted it. So, no, there's not like a plan to shift B-1 into SBR. If it's, if it comes
up during the Community Plan process, then that's when we'll, we'll let it
happen.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, 'cause I, I remember way back when,
maybe several years ago I think I asked you the same question about Paia and
Lower Main...not Lower Main but Waiehu Beach Road. Those areas that were
under SBR and, you know, the type of businesses that could go into that area.
And I had an inquiry in regards to a store, and because it was in the residential
area, industry so it wasn't considered. So I'm just wondering now as we move
forward, you know, some of the subdivisions that we have, current subdivisions,
can, can those subdivision be, you know, considered--certain areas--B-1 if they
wanna put in like, say, a florist or, or a barber shop?
MR. ALUETA: They could if they came in...I mean, the subdivision is just a chopping
up of the land, more or less. But if, if it's zoned residential, then they'll be stuck
with...they'll have to abide by the residential zoning unless they came in and said
we wanna have this as a, as a B-1 or, you know, or as a neighborhood business.
And, again, that's...if it's on the periphery like, you know, along Lower, Lower
Waiehu Beach Road then that kinda makes sense. And you kinda...like I say, you
kinda see that come along where you had residential like along, in Paukukalo area
where they've...where obviously there were clearly single-family homes that had
been converted to, to some type of business like Aloha Poi Factory and...stuff
like that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Well, one of the concerns that I had, you
know, you know, I support businesses throughout Maui County and, you know,
when, you know, going forward I, I know as plans comes in for subdivision
-16-
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approval through this Council, you know, in order for us to put some...we could
put some restrictions in regards to not having, you know, this type B-1
along... within the subdivision itself. So that wouldn't prohibit us from doing
that.
MR. ALUETA: Subdivision, . . .(clears throat). . . excuse me. Subdivision is, is handled
administratively. The, the purview that the Council would have would be on
changings of zoning so if you're changing...but not necessary...you would not
have a purview on a subdivision, per se.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. I'm, I'm gonna make a few comments
then we'll go around again. In the section here on Page 3 where it talks about
other similar retail businesses or service establishments that provide goods or
services primarily for residents of the surrounding neighborhood, that's fairly
vague which is... in, in, in most, most cases is a good thing unless you get a really
good lawyer that might tear it up a little bit. But my biggest thing is provided
such uses shall be...approved by the appropriate planning commission. I'd rather,
Members, if, if there's no objections to change that to the Planning Director. Or
at least discuss changing that to the Planning Director because to put...somebody
whose name...whose business doesn't quite line up here but it is kind of the same
kind of business, to have him to go to through the whole Planning Commission
process, I don't know that that's a good idea. But that's something that I'd like to
see if we can discuss as we start making changes. Any comments from the
Department on that one?
MS. MCLEAN: Apparently that was the Department's initial thought but they felt that
would be a bit of an overreach going out to commissions. But it's something that
the Department would support. It would certainly save time for the applicants,
time and money for the applicants. It would save time and money for the
Department as well.
CHAIR COUCH: And then along those same lines, I know there...in one of these I think
is the business resorts that you actually have it as the Director. But if the
Director, for instance, were to say no, that business doesn't qualify or doesn't fit
that criteria, what's the recourse at this point? Would it be BVA or would it be
the Commission itself?
MR. ALUETA: The Planning Commission.
MS. MCLEAN: It would be appealing the Planning Director's decision would go to
BVA.
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CHAIR COUCH: Then along those lines, is there a way we can put in here or is that
totally changing the way the...laws are? That something like that could be
handled at the Commission as opposed to the BVA?
MR. HOPPER: Mr. Chair, I think by Charter if the Director's allowed to make the
decision, that, that, that decision needs to be appealed to the Board of Variances
and Appeal per, per Charter. SMA is a bit different because that's, that's a
separate area but I think that if the Planning Director... if it's the Planning
Director's decision you're talking about, if, if that decision is disagreed with, that
would have to go to the BVA. And I don't think you need to add anything else in
here. I think that's automatically going to be, you know, the case.
CHAIR COUCH: But my concern on that is I thought there're real strict criteria on the
BVA, hardship or some really strict criteria. Or is that just for the variances, not
the appeal?
MR. HOPPER: No, there's variances-CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. HOPPER: --and appeals. Appeals...it has...you still have to have...you need a
pretty substantial criteria to overturn the Director's decision. They'd have to have
a clear error of law or, or several other things. In, in both cases, yeah, you would
have to meet, you have to meet a burden. You know, you have to show, you
know, several different things and, and the burden would be on the person
appealing that decision. So in, in either case I think you need to structure it that
way even if theoretically you could go to the Planning Commission. It's typically
the Director would make a decision and then to overturn an administrative
decision like that typically there's some burden that needs to be shown. So,
again, I don't know if there's much choice as far as giving it to the Planning
Commission because the Charter says it's gotta go to the Planning...or to the
Board of Variances and Appeals, I believe.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. That's, that's pretty straightforward. All right, Members,
continuing on. I know people have more questions and if not, we'll, we'll talk
about some changes on this. Ms. Baisa?
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. Couple of things. First was,
in this proposed draft of the bill as well as in the definitions, it's disconcerting to
me that we're still using the word "transient vacation rental", that, that phrase.
On, on the bill that is before you also that we're trying to work on, we've tried to
use the term "short-term rentals". And the reason why I have a problem with this
transient vacation rental definition is because first of all, it will not conform to the
bill that we're working on and it'll need changing. And secondly, there's a
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negative connotation for use of the word "transient". You know, not everybody
that's in a short-term rental is in the transient picture that comes in your mind
when you think about transients. You know, when Maui talks about transients, it
tends to be a little negative and I'm not sure that that's a good thing. So for me I
would much prefer to see the terms, "short-term rental" used. That's just one of
my issues. Any response?
CHAIR COUCH: Yeah, and may...if I might add to that is that a lot of times when
somebody's coming over here--Mr. Alueta mentioned it--if you have people from
neighbor islands coming over here for short term or to do business and also, more
importantly, I think is that programs like the traveling nurses program, they're
three-month rentals as opposed to six-month rentals. And, and right now they'd
have to go--and they're not vacationing. They're actually here doing a lot of
work. So Department?
MS. MCLEAN: Thank you, Chair. In response to Councilmember Baisa's comment,
there are two different definitions in Title 19. Short-term rental--I won't read all
of it--but short-term rental is for periods of less than 30 days.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Uh-huh.
MS. MCLEAN: Transient vacation rental is for periods of less than 180 days. So that's-VICE-CHAIR BAISA: So, so-MS. MCLEAN: --that's the existing definition.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: So you're talking about less than 30 days?
MS. MCLEAN: Transient vacation rental is less than 180.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Less than 180 days.
MS. MCLEAN: And that's-VICE-CHAIR BAISA: But in the bill that is on before us, we're talking about 180 days,
right?
CHAIR COUCH: Right. Well, yes, and also just to, to clarify a little bit what
Deputy Director McLean said short-term rental means...the, the, the definition
says short-term rental means a transient vacation rental-VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Less than 180 days.
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CHAIR COUCH: --or use. So it kinda lumps it in as a transient vacation rental too. I
don't know if we can tweak with that. Now, those kind of definitions, are we
allowed to tweak or is that a substantive change? 'Cause that's, that definition is
not in this ordinance at this time although we did add a few definitions.
MR. HOPPER: Mr. Chair, you could, you could add short-term rentals as a use, 1, I
believe. But I, I don't, I don't...I wouldn't recommend changing the definitions
as they exist.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. That, that's what I thought.
MR. HOPPER: All right.
CHAIR COUCH: That answer your question?
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: No.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: I'm trying to figure out where does the short-term rental come in
in this, this table that we're looking at. Are we gonna insert it? Or are we
allowed to insert it?
MR. HOPPER: If you, if you wanted to have a use that would...if you wanna allow
transient vacation rentals, then someone would be allowed to rent their property
less than 180 days. You know, people stay there for less than 180 days, whether
it's one day, two days, five days, up to 180 days. A short-term rental would be
renting it up to 30 days. You couldn't go 31 days as, as that term would,
would...you would, you would look that. So those, those are the differences in
the definitions. Then I think otherwise you're getting into single-family dwelling
use I think if you go beyond that. So it all depends on, you know, they have
different definitions and at this point I think it's the Council's discretion as to
which terms you would choose to use. But short-term rental is...does have a
definite different...sorry...different definition than transient vacation rental. So I
would just be conscious of that.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Well, rather than getting into the debate on that at this point
because we're talking about two different things, Chair, I suggest we kinda look
into that.
CHAIR COUCH: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: And for me it's really important that we are clear as to the things
we're talking about because we hear two different terms and I'm not sure that the
-20-
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public or the people that are listening to this understand the difference between a
TVR and a short-term rental.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR BALSA: So to, to me that language is important. The other thing that I
wanted to comment on was the idea of, you know, transferring a lot of the
responsibility for this kind of decision to the Planning Director. You know, I
have felt for a very long time that I would like to see a lot more discretion given
to the Planning Director. And it's nothing to do with not having trust or faith or
not, not...appreciating the Planning Commissions. I think that they do
tremendous work and I, I'm just very impressed with the kind of person who gets
on that body and work they do and how long they work at it. I mean, it's just
amazing to me 'cause 1 watch Planning Commission meetings ad nauseum at
home because I wanna hear what's...and see, you know, what's going on there.
And I've great admiration for them. But it's just a matter of trying to move some
approvals that, you know, may be more, more perfunctory. I mean you guys have
the laws all laid out and the Director can take a look at it and look at the reports
from the agencies that check things and approve it. And maybe that would help
move things along. You know, we are dealing with a serious economic climate
here and I think it's really important that we try to get these permits up and
moving. And so if there is an easier way and I think that we should have enough
trust in our Planning Director and our Planning staff who are very, I think, very
meticulous about checking on things. Maybe sometimes we think
over-meticulous but, you know, you're doing your job. But I'd like to see some
of that moved to the Planning Director so that we can move things quicker.
That's just my opinion. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair Couch. And I'm...I like saying
that. . .(Laughter). . . I'm looking at, you know, the item R which we were
discussing about home occupations and the permitted uses. And I wanna revert
back, I believe Chair Couch brought up the other similar retails businesses, that
part of the, the graph here and, you know, in relation to approved by appropriate
Planning Commission where the overall rule authority goes to Planning Director.
So how does that relate? In this particular instance it's Planning Commission and
then the overall rule maker is Director?
MR. ALUETA: Yeah. The, the Department can adopt administrative rules and so that's
where the... it's set by the, the Director to administer that part. So you're giving
him the rule-making authority to establish departmental rules for the
administration of, of the sections. So whether it be the special use permits or the
accessory use permits meaning we can establish rules and say, an applicant needs
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to submit x, y, z paperwork or, or documentation to show that it's an accessory
use. Or in the case, if you granted the, the authority to the Director with regards
to similar uses, he could adopt the administrative rules to enable him to properly
review requests for different uses to ensure that they are compatible and are
similar and meet the intent of the B-1 district.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So here uses will be brought up by recommendation
or...by the Planning...appropriate Planning Commissions in the different districts
for this particular item?
MR. ALUETA: In, in this particular case the way, the way the proposal is right now,
anyone who comes up with a use that's not permitted...not specifically listed as
being allowed or does not meet the intent of the other uses, they can ask that the
commission to determine that the use is, is an allowed use and meets the intent of
the B-1. And it would have to go before the Commission and it's currently
handled that way.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Yeah, I'm just, you know, at a certain level I
think the, the, the particular Planning Commissions have a little bit more insight
into what works best in their districts being with three different islands in one
county. You know, I understand Ms. Baisa's comments also in regards to
Planning Director and the Planning Department as a whole. But I'd really hate to
oust the, you know, suggestions and insight and manao by our outside districts
where we're not...we don't live there physically. I mean, I don't. So I, I
definitely cherish and take a lot of...you know, take in regard their comments.
And, and I really don't wanna, you know, again, push them aside in, in their
suggestions into our decision-making as a whole...as the whole as a county. So I
just wanna point that out. Thank you, Chair and Department.
MS. MCLEAN: If I could.
CHAIR COUCH: Sure.
MS. MCLEAN: Just comment a little bit further on the rule-making authority. For the
Department to adopt administrative rules there is a public hearing associated with
the adoption with of those rules. So even though, yes, as you pointed out it's the
authority of the Director, there is a public process to those rules before they're
adopted. So in, in that example if, if this authority were given to the Director
rather than the Planning Commissions, then the rules would spell out, okay, what
does the Director have to look at in order to make that decision. And that would
be a public process to adopt those rules so there would be input on...into what the
Director has to consider before making those decisions. So even though case by
case they wouldn't be public process, the, the way that the Director makes those,
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those determinations would follow rules that would've been adopted in a public
forum.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, very good.
MS. MCLEAN: . . .(Inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. That's comforting. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I have a question on the
recycling collection centers. It says here, conducted wholly within a completely
enclosed building or within an area enclosed on all sides by a solid wall or fence.
And I understand that application when it's in fairly close confines between
business establishments but my, my recollection--and correct me if I'm wrong-Maui Disposal set up a recycling...just a temporary recycling center in the...at the
end of Pukalani Terrace Shopping Center parking lot. And I... my recollection,
they were told they can't do that because it's not permitted. This doesn't sound
like that would permit that type of an operation which I found was acceptable. I
was shopping downwind and there was no smell. There was no clutter, no, no
waste flying around. I would hate to feel that we're shutting those kinds of easy
operations down and...this suggests to me that if somebody's gonna want to get
into the recycling business that they have to either construct a building or put, put
a fair amount of capital expense into a containment area when I don't see a whole
lot of...I see the, the control being fairly adequately provided by the Maui
Disposal type of operation.
MR. ALUETA: Okay. I'll just...first I'm addressing enclosure comment, that's a, that's
a standard, standard for all of B, the B-1 Neighborhood Business District. So it's
not just particular to the recycling collection facility. That's an enclosure
requirement that already exists in the B-1.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: In respect to all, all operations, any kind of business?
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, there's an enclosure requirement on the standards that was always
there. You look under Development standards...there's a-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So if you're gonna have an ice cream-MR. ALUETA: On the last page it says-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --snack or counter--
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MR. ALUETA: --all business services or processing shall be conducted wholly within a
completely enclosed building. So that's an enclosure requirement. And that's,
that's a carryover. That, that's something that's already existing on most of
the...that was in the, in the old Code, or the existing Code and we're just moving
it over into a table format and moving it to the Development standards.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Sorry, where, where was, where was that reference you
just made?
MR. ALUETA: It's on the last page under Development standards. You see the table
which is 19.16.050 and it goes over all the different developments such as the
setbacks, minimum lot. And if you turn the page on Page 4 of the bill, it's on the
backside on the last...it has like...it allows for structure within the setback and
then it has enclosure requirement. I'm sorry, Page 6. Gotta get my contacts
cleaned, sorry. . .(Chuckles). . .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I don't, I don't see the enclosure requirement.
CHAIR COUCH: Page 6 of the bill. The last thing in your...
MS. MCLEAN: In your table.
CHAIR COUCH: In your table.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: This one?
CHAIR COUCH: Yep.
MR. ALUETA: Yep.
CHAIR COUCH: Second, second item in the page.
MR. ALUETA: Second box.
MS. MCLEAN: . .(Inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, I'm, I'm sorry. I thought you were saying that
was...taken out. Yeah, but an enclosed building is different from an enclosed
yard, enclosed area.
MR. ALUETA: Well within an area enclosed on all sides by solid fence or wall at least
six feet in height. So in that no goods or objects shall be stacked higher than the
fence or walls erected.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right. But my reading of this enclosure requirement on
the back page, is that's buildings, not the yard area. And if you're doing recycling
I'm assuming you're doing it in, in the...it sounded like it was going to allow it to
be within a walled-in area or the walled-in area was required. And I'm just...I
guess I'm just asking the question whether, whether or not the kind of thing that
Maui Disposal was doing when they pull up the, you know, they pull the
receptacle, have a recycling opportunity and then drive away. Does that have to
be...are we precluding that kind of thing from happening in a shopping center
where there's nothing else around? It's not an enclosement or an enclosure.
CHAIR COUCH: If I may ask Mr. White, are you talking recycling center or redemption
center? They did make a distinction between the two. The HI-5 redemption
center or did they recycle newspapers and all that other...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, there's there's no, there's no such limitations on
redemption center.
,

CHAIR COUCH: Yeah, but the instance you were talking about, was that a recycling-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Recycling.
CHAIR COUCH: It was recycling with cardboard and the whole nine yards? Okay.
MS. MCLEAN: I, I think for the B-1 district...again, we're talking about-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: That's in B-2, too.
MS. MCLEAN: Residential scale. And I, I think we should consider changing that
perhaps in B-2. I think for B-1 that might be appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm, I'm not questioning whether may be more
appropriate in B-1. I looked in B-2 and it wasn't there. I mean it was the same
reference there.
MS. MCLEAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Since we don't have a map except in Mr. Alueta's head
. . .(laughter). . . I can't see where B-1 ends and B-2 starts, so...
MS. MCLEAN: And I think in, in Pukalani...and, and I don't know...do you know what
Pukalani Terrace is zoned off-hand?
MR. ALUETA: That's in neighborhoods that more likely would be B-2.
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MS. MCLEAN: I'd be surprised if that was zoned B-1 but it could be. It certainly could
be. But in that setting I think it works for it to be open and for it not to be
enclosed. I think in a B-1 setting-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, I'm, I'm just interested in passing something that
allows a proliferation of common sense. . . . (Laughter).. .
MR. ALUETA: Okay. Just, just to let you know that-MS. MCLEAN: We're in support of that, too.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, we're in support. But just to let you know I, I did go over this as
far as the definitions sections with regards to...with Public Works, with
Solid... with Environmental Management. So we did try to work it out and I think
that the intent was to not have these in your business areas, you know, look like
an industrial area which is basically where they're limited to right now. So we try
to expand them out and we also-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, I don't, I don't question the intent.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm just trying to make sure that what we're doing is, is,
is providing some practical recycling opportunities.
MR. ALUETA: Uh-huh, uh-huh. I guess because this is within an area enclosed on all
four...or within an area enclosed on all four sides by a solid wall and so...or solid
fence or wall at least six feet in height. And the...based on that definition that's
pretty much what you have now with the...with your collection facilities that are
out there now.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm, I'm not questioning that-MR. ALUETA: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: It makes, it makes sense in...the B-1. I'm just
questioning that...I don't want to pass something that doesn't allow it to happen
in a wide open space in a big, big parking lot. That's all.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. And that sounds like it's a...it's an issue for B-2 and not quite
B-1. Is that-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, but it's in B-2 as well.
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CHAIR COUCH: Right. Then when we get to B-2...remember to, remember to bring
that up.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'll try.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. . .(Laughter). . .
MR. ALUETA: I'm not...I'm just trying...I'm just making sure I'm following your,
your...so you don't feel that there needs to be a fenced in area if someone...if
they dropped one of these off in, in a parking lot of say, Kaahumanu Center, or
anywhere else that there doesn't need to be a fenced in requirement to contain if
someone's trying to throw their cans and it's windy. It's not gonna... so I think
that's the intent is-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: My, my concern is I can understand these requirements
if it's a permanent facility.
MR. ALUETA: Oh!
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: But I don't understand applying permanent facility type
regulations to a temporary setup or one that is hauled away at the end of the day.
That's, that's my concern. And that, and that's what was explained to me by the
folks that were doing this and we were told we can't do it because of the law.
And I'd, I'd...you know, as all of us want to do, we wanna, we wanna pass laws
that, that fix problems without creating others. So, and I know that's not very
easy.
MR. ALUETA: In, in, in that case, the...that...if it's...it would be, it would be allowed,
from my perspective, it would be allowed as an allowed accessory use. That
would be determined by the Director. So you're not saying it's a...it's not really
a... recycling collection facility. Someone bringing a dumpster or a
trash...whether it's a trash receptacle or a recycling receptacle, it would all be
allowed within the...under...as an accessory use to the business. So as long as
it's a accessory use to the business.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
MR. ALUETA: Now if you're saying-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: But, but I'm not sure. See, when people call the
Planning Department, if everyone can read the map in your head and everyone
can read those kinds of side comments, that's fine. But generally what happens,
they go back to the...or the ordinance and say, if you wanna recycle you gotta be
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in...inside an enclosed, fully enclosed area. And they hang up the call. Right?
So...
MR. ALUETA: Hence, administrative rules.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . . .(Laughs). . . Well, maybe we ought to codify 'em
then.
CHAIR COUCH: I know. . .(laughs). . . Okay, Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: You know, I was looking at Page No. 4, Special
uses. And if we...my, my general feeling is that, you know, we should have the
Planning Commissioners look at that rather than giving the authority for any
signature or any approvals on the special uses by the...Planning Director. And
the reason why I say that is that, you know, on the commission you do have
commissioners that represent different areas. And, you know, for those
commissioners that represent different areas they, they, they try to protect their
areas as much as possible. And sometimes we...well, not sometimes, when we,
when we give authority to the Director although there's rules that, that they do
make to follow, again, you know, for me I feel uncomfortable. I feel
uncomfortable. You know, I, like Member Cochran, yeah, I would rather have
the Planning Commissioners do all these approvals on the permits. The other
thing, you know when we make changes like this, although it all went to different
Planning Commissioners, Hana, Molokai, Lanai, here we are making changes.
Do we send this thing back to the Planning...through different Planning
Commissions so that they can review this thing? The reason why I bring it up, I
know Molokai for one is very adamant on certain things.
MS. MCLEAN: We wouldn't take them back to Planning Commissions unless they were
substantive changes that needed to go back or if the Council wanted them to go
back. If I could comment on your previous point on the special use permits, no
one, I don't believe, was advocating that the authority for special use permits be
taken away from the commissions.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Or, or...
MS. MCLEAN: That would still stay with the commissions.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Any permits that's being approved by the
Director directly, I would rather have the Planning Commissioners review.
MS. MCLEAN: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I think, you know, that creates a more, I guess,
trust. You know, sometimes you putting too many...too much trust. You know,
we get burned at the end.
CHAIR COUCH: I'd like to just sort of make a comment on that and just see where
your, your level is here. We, we were talking about other similar retail businesses
or service established that, that provide goods or services primarily for the
residents of the surrounding neighborhood. That was one of the things that I was
talking about saying, you know, let the, let the Director handle that one because
it...we can't list everything here. And if, if, if somebody who wants to open a
gelato store which isn't listed here, you know, it says ice cream or snack counters,
the Director has to make that call. Or a bike shop. Anywhere in here, there's no
bike shop or bicycle rentals or something like that. Something that, that may be
consistent with what this rules says but not specifically pointed out, I, I... as. as a
person who used to work at the Planning Department thought that it would be
okay for the, the Director to make that decision because you as a person who
wants to open that business doesn't have to go through the, the noticing
requirements and the huge requirements if you take it to the Planning
Commission. That, that, that was, that was the...my thoughts on, on that part.
Special uses I totally agree on uses that are similar. I don't know. Is that, is that
where your concern is?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. When, when, you know, the discretion
would be left up to the Director when there's something that is major rather than
something simple.
CHAIR COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Does it go to the Planning Director or does it go
to the Planning Commission?
CHAIR COUCH: I guess that would be...Mr. Hopper?
MR. HOPPER: I think I can help with that. I mean if...right now it's...it goes to the
Planning Commission. This is how the current law is written I believe. The idea,
I think, is if the Planning Director sees a use and it's the same as one of uses
listed, oh, I don't know, gelato shop to me you could argue that's an ice cream
store. And, you know, it's, it's listed in there. I think if the Planning Director
is...would, would have to go to the Planning Commission for...it's for other
similar retail businesses or service establishments that provide goods or services
primarily for residents of the surrounding neighborhood. And that it says,
provided such uses shall be approved by the appropriate Planning Commission as
conforming to the intent of this title. So I think that what, what the Commission
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would look at is if a...use is not listed, you couldn't fit it in. The Planning
Director may be able to say, okay, we can fit you into one of these uses. It's here.
It's, it's not conforming to the intent. It's actually listed. And if the Director does
not believe that a list is listed there but it's similar he can tell that...or she could
tell that person you need to go to the Planning Commission. I'm going to let them
make the decision and the Director would...the Planning Commission
would...could say, even though the use is not listed here, it's very similar to the
intent of these uses and so we're going to allow it. And so, it's, it's, it's been in
this Code I think for a pretty long time. And, and, and there's permits like that go
through the Commission and then the Commission approves them. And I'm not
sure of...with those staff reports and things look like that go to the Commission
but it's...that process has happened for, for a while now as I understand it. And I
think the Department could probably elaborate more. But I think that's the
distinction. Is it listed or not? If it's listed, and then the Director could say, yes,
you can do it. If it's not listed, but similar, the, the, the, the Director could say, go
to the Commission. If it's listed as a special use, for example, then they would
have to go to the Commission, you know, no matter what. And, and there's
different hearing requirements and things like that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Members, any other comments? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: On, on that issue it, it seems to me that if it's a...if it's
listed, it's...it doesn't have to go to the Director because it's already listed. If it's
similar to what's listed, that should be at the discretion of the Director. If it's
something that is different enough from what's listed, then the Director should
send it. Now, now, you know, maybe you guys can word it in such a way but, but
I, I agree with Joe. If it's, if it's a significant departure from what...from the list,
it ought to go back to the Planning Commission. But at this...I think what we're
trying to avoid is having to go to the Planning Commission if it...and again this
gets back to interpretation by the Department, whether it's close enough to call
listed and, and so a lot of it gets down to interpretation, you know. We can sit
here and say gelato's not ice cream but unfortunately they're people who'd say,
hey, it says ice cream and I'm not gonna lose my job over gelato. So...
CHAIR COUCH: And I, and I have a perfect example that this actually happened.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I knew you could add that.
CHAIR COUCH: You had a parcel that it said, no banks on this parcel. And the, the
Planning Director said a credit union is not a bank so it can go on this parcel.
And, wow, to me a credit union and a bank are extremely similar. It's...that's the
ice cream/gelato distinction. So my thought is if it is not similar and somebody
-30-
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wanted to put it in there, it's just not allowed, period, according to the rules. And
Mr. Hopper, I...or Ms. McLean, either one, if it's a situation where it's not...if
it's not similar and it's not listed as special use, it's just plain not allowed in that
district. Is that right?
MR. HOPPER: That's correct. You would need a variance. I mean, let's hope, that's
the purpose of the zoning, is to say what's...or a conditional...permit.
But...it's...the idea is that, yeah, if the list is not listed...I mean that's the whole
purpose of your zoning, right, is to say certain things are allowed and certain
things are not allowed. And if they're not listed, then yes, there's other remedies.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, so but...if, if you wanna do something that is not
listed, then you get a special use permit which has to go through the Council
anyway.
MR. ALUETA: No.
CHAIR COUCH: No.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No?
CHAIR COUCH: Only these, one special use is permitted in this, in B-1.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, okay.
CHAIR COUCH: The, the special uses have to be listed.
MR. ALUETA: Conditional permits come to County Council.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR COUCH: So does that help, Mr. Pontanilla, help your, your concern?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: It does somewhat but...
CHAIR COUCH: How, how about if we said something along the lines, you know,
Molokai and Lanai?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: You know, you use a perfect example, banking.
Banking is run by board of directors. I don't know if they get paid. Credit unions
is a non-profit organization. Directors don't get paid.
CHAIR COUCH: Right, but the uses are similar. People come in, deposit money--
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: The uses are almost the same, yeah. But one is
governed by a certain set of rules as well as the other, a certain set of rules, yeah.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Like—yes?
MR. HOPPER: Just as a comment. The...I mean if there's something that you really
definitely wanna allow and I know that there's, there's no way necessarily say
everything, then I think be as clear as possible because I mean whether it's the
Planning Director or the Planning Commission making the, the decision, if, if
there's discretion given, you know, there's gonna be a discretionary decision
made. And some may be agreed with or some not agreed with by, by different
people. But, you know, if, if there's an, an issue where you really wanna be sure
something is allowed definitely without having to go to commission, then, you
know, we, we can go ahead and be clear on that now. Now is the time to, 1 think,
write that into the legislation so we don't deal with ambiguity later on. Just, just
as a comment.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Miss Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. I'm looking at the redemption
center permitted use and there's under the portion for criteria limitations there's
no purview there in regards to the noise and, and any types of those negative
impacts that could be associated with this redemption center use. Was that
discussed or is there a reason why there's no parameters in regards to redemption
centers?
MR. ALUETA: Because redemption centers are for the HI-5 based on definitions. A lot
of times it's actually an accessory to an existing business such as a grocery store
or, you know...let's see...yeah, or a gasoline station in retail, such as Shell
station. You know, they have their machines. So that's why-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So this is just addressing those machine-type
redemption centers?
MR. ALUETA: Correct. Or-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not big bins-MR. ALUETA: --or you're-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and those types of roll offs and what have you?
MR. ALUETA: That, that is correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: That's called the...that's why it's called the...recycling collection
centers are more geared toward your...those green...drop off bins and the
redemption centers are more your areas where you have a...the machines or is
accessory to a retail operation or could be an operation in itself.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
MR. ALUETA: I mean if you have more, you normally just take your boxes and cans
into the grocery store itself and then they would count 'em out and it would just
be part of the existing retail operation.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. And also an accessory use, I'm
just trying to see if anything's addressed to where you have a business and
possibly a residential, like the...back in the old days where we used to have a
business below and then your residential dwelling upstairs. Is that addressed in
here?
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, if you look at the-CHAIR COUCH: Page 4.
MR. ALUETA: --single, single-family dwellings are allowed per lot.
CHAIR COUCH: Page 4.
MR. ALUETA: On Page, Page 3.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Three.
CHAIR COUCH: Three.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I guess because a lot of businesses...I mean I'd like
to see that utilized once again and I don't see it anymore.
MR. ALUETA: It's added to B, it's added to the B-2-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: In B-2?
MR. ALUETA: --district and B-3 where we're allowing for residential units above and
below the retail shop.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay.
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CHAIR COUCH: It's also in B-1, yeah? Page 4.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, Page--I'm sorry. Yeah, under accessory uses.
CHAIR COUCH: Yeah. One or more dwelling units.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, so an accessory use would be a
residential...also. I mean, vice versa, business, residential use.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, one or more dwelling located above or below the first floor of the
permitted use. And that's kinda introducing, again...trying to, trying to
reintroduce a mixed use into your commercial core.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh. Okay, very good. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Ms. Baisa?
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Just comment. I think it's kinda cute. It obviously is very dated.
But the term grocery stores and meat markets. Do we have such thing as a meat
market anymore? I grew up when we had meat markets where there was a
carcass and you went in and had a piece cut off but I don't think that happens
anymore.
CHAIR COUCH: I think that's Lulu's in Kihei. No, . .(chuckles). . . wrong kind.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Be nice. . .(Laughter). . . But, you know, it, it seems like such
a old term.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Right?
MR. ALUETA: It, it, it is and, and again, we, we tried to...we did most of the updating, I
guess, as far as consolidation of the terms under the B-2 district and not so much
under the B-1 or even the BCT. We tried to modern...I mean BCT came a little
bit. B-1 we pretty much left it as stock and did not wanna introduce any...too
many new uses, because again, one, it's not a common zoning that this...that
people come in for today. It's not a common zoning within the community today.
It's also, again, the design of it is more or less to almost recognize the existing
commercial uses ahead of it popped up. And then they had to give them a zoning
and they were in the neighborhood and they were part...already a old singlefamily house converted. So they said, okay, we'll give you B-1 and they kinda
just wanted to recognize that existing commercial use that's adjacent to a
-34-

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

August 29, 2011

residential. And you look at the purpose and intent and one of the... it's, it's, it's a
service your surrounding a subdivision or your surrounding neighborhood, you
know, where people walk, bike or it's a short drive. It wasn't meant to be for...if
you're in Kahului, it wasn't mean for people from Kula. Or it wasn't to be like
Costco which is basically a county--I don't know what you would call that--more
of a county shopping center because they have people from Molokai, Lanai and,
and Hana drive in to go to Costco.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: It wasn't meant to be that. It's meant to be, you know, there's a certain
perimeter or, or area that this services and so you don't really wanna have a
regional shopping center or regional Safeway grocery store. You kinda wanted to
have more like your lao...or if you...lao Grocery's surprisingly is still there on
Vineyard Street. That's kinda what your neighborhood B-1 grocer look like and
meat market. . .(laughter). . . If you wanna modernize it, go ahead. But I, I, I
just...I didn't wanna dip my toe too far in and, and get it cut off.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Well, you know, being that we're trying to update this thing, I
think it'd be nice if it was more modern. I also have things about, like,
delicatessens, you know. Here in Hawaii we don't talk too much about
delicatessens but we certainly talk about plate lunch places or, you know... it
seems kind of quaint to be in our laws at this point but I'm not gonna sit here and
argue about it. The reason why this is important to me is my stepfather was a,
was a butcher. And they actually had a meat market and you go there and, you
know, you'd order your cut of meat. But you, you can't do that anymore.
CHAIR COUCH: Well, I do say we do have at least one good delicatessen in Kihei so...
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Well, you've got one but nobody else does. . .(Laughter). . .
That's why the trips to New York are so wonderful. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Mr. Pontanilla...Mr. Pontanilla...Mr. Alueta, actually, what kind of
gasoline retailing would be in a B-1? I, I see you mention that and I'm guessing
it's something like the Minit Stops we have out there or something like that. Is
that the...what you envision? And are there any like that right now?
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, you, you still do. Like, I mean, it used to be, like, up in Kula.
Like...is it Shim's? You know, up in, in, in Keokea.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Gas station?
MR. ALUETA: Is what you have a gasoline retailing. That's part--
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CHAIR COUCH: Calasa's.
MR. ALUETA: Calasa's, Calasa's.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: So that, that, that's your, your, your typical gasoline retailing where
it's...they just...place to sell gas and they have a little store. And most places,
you know, like even Uptown Chevron, used to...I mean they used to have a
garage and then they converted more to like what this is which is gasoline
retailing.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: And like they have Fong Store in Kula.
MR. ALUETA: Fong. That's-VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Yeah, that's another one.
MR. ALUETA: That's who I was trying to think of. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Any further comments on this one, Members? The...just before we
head on out on our break, I would like to ask if the Members are okay with this, is
to think of any of the changes you might like in this one and all the other four
because we're gonna just kinda go through each one today. And then if you could
in writing--if you don't, that's fine too--but submit 'em to the Committee Staff
and that way we can have, when it's time to come back and revisit this we can go
right through and say yeah or nay on those. Yeah?
MS. MCLEAN: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to reiterate that we would support
adding personal and business services as a permitted use. That would take away a
number of things that would have to go to Planning Commission 'cause
that's...that would allow a number of uses. There's also one particular thing I
wanted to point out. On Page 5 dealing with maximum building height. It
indicates that maximum height of 30 feet and then in the Notes and Exceptions, it
says that except that vent pipes, fans, chimneys, antennae, and equipment used for
small-scale energy systems on roofs shall not exceed forty feet. I'd like to add "in
total height". I don't want it to be misconstrued that you can have a 40-foot
antennae or chimney or something. What that's suggesting is that you can get... if
you have a 30-foot structure, you get an additional 10 feet for these additional
things. So just adding "in total height" at the end there is something that we
would recommend as a clarification.
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CHAIR COUCH: Okay. And again we'll do that with...when we bring this all up at
once. But thank you for bringing that up and hopefully Staff has that. And we
can add that as well as the personal businesses...personal services-MS. MCLEAN: Personal and business services.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. All right, Members, it's a little bit after 3:00. How about a
break until 3:20. You okay with that? All right. We'll be in recess `til 3:20.
. . .(gavel). .

RECESS:

3:06 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:27 p.m.

CHAIR COUCH: . . . (gavel). . . Okay, the Planning Committee meeting of August 29
will come back to order. We had a very interesting look at the Dead Sea Scrolls.
Thank you, Joe. They're over on the...on the press desk right now. Our official
zoning maps and it's, it comes to a surprise to a lot of the Members that that's our
official maps. . . .(Laughter). . . Okay, so we went through B-1 which is
Item No. PC-6.

ITEM NO. 5: B-2 COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT (C.C. No. 1

1-83)

CHAIR COUCH: Let's go to B...Item PC-5 which is B-2 because that's also where a lot
of the...some, some of the new definitions have been put in. So if you turn to
PC-5 at the very end is where the actual language is. The ordinance is Bill No.
blank 2011. The last...what, six, seven pages of your...oh no, there's more. Oh
yeah, that's it. Department, can you give us a...what type of things are supposed
to be in, or what, what the whole idea was behind B-2 this time, Community
Business Districts?
MR. ALUETA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just to clarify one thing before we get
going. The intent of the bill was never to eliminate stacking. We're gonna do
that with the industrial area but we're not doing it with the, the Business Districts.
So when we were reviewing this we did find that the draft that came out for some
reason, it, it had bracketed the B...all the uses allowed in B-1 and that was not the
intent. So B-1, all the uses allowed in B-1 should be that first... in that first table
on B-2, okay. So just so we're clear on that. But we, again, we tried to
consolidate. Again, put everything back into table format, have a standardized
format of allowed uses, development standards, what's considered accessory use,
what's considered a special use. Because B-2...has a little more zoning area and
we spent a little more time with it, we were, we were able to go over with the
Commissions. We tried to eliminate some older terms and also consolidate
because B-2 is a laundry list of uses and so we felt that, you know, just go...it's
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like a couple pages of allowed uses. And we wanted...we have some existing
definitions, these are not new ones. These are existing definitions that Council
had previously adopted. One...primarily one of them was, like, personal business
services and so if you look on the staff report that was presented to the
Commissions and it's on Exhibit 13 of that staff report. You'll find another table
and this was what was presented to the Commissions. That is, where you have all
of these listed out uses. We felt those no longer need to be listed anymore
because if you add in this new definition or this existing definition of personal and
business services, general merchandising, general office, educational institutions,
and then education, specialized, right, you're able to eliminate much of this
laundry list of, of uses. And, again, some of the...again, we added in, you know,
energy systems. Also added in some, you know...allow, allowing for cell towers
in some areas or freestanding towers. We allowed...we felt that just like in the
Wailuku Business District should be able to do some kind of transient vacation
rental. It's allowed so we felt the same thing with the Business District. For the
B-2 we also wanted to inject a little bit of single-family or residential uses,
apartments...not, not apartments per se but just a mixed use of it So we allowed
for dwelling units above and below the first floor. 'Cause, again, you gotta
understand that this is still...your primary purpose of this district is business. You
don't want a use that's really allowed in another district to overcrowd some of
these business areas and have the same situation that you have in the industrial
areas. So TVRs were allowed up to 20 rooms. The development standards again
were consolidated into one table to be used. There's also a floor...unlike the,
unlike the B-1 district you have a floor area ratio. The maximum height is a lot
taller in the B-2 district. You can go up to 90 feet. So...and we did again some
cleanups on subordinate uses. But for the most part that's pretty much the...it as
far as changes. We did try to accommodate for again the recycling centers...or,
I'm sorry, the, the redemption centers and facilities.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Alueta. Just to reiterate, you said the stacking wasn't
meant to be removed. So are you going to put that in and resubmit the bill? Or
do we...do you want us to...
MR. ALUETA: I feel-CHAIR COUCH: You want us to make the...
MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
CHAIR COUCH: Changes ourselves.
MR. ALUETA: I think we can make the changes here by just...you just will add it as the
first use from the permitted uses in the table and it would just state that
.(inaudible).. .
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CHAIR COUCH: Okay, when we get, when we get to that area I think-MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
CHAIR COUCH: --we'll, we'll discuss that. And one other question I have before we
go to the Members, I don't see...a definition for personal or business services. Is
that already in 19.04.0 jsicr
MR. ALUETA: That is correct.
CHAIR COUCH: Oh, okay, okay. Then I guess my question would be, you have this
nice table in Exhibit 13, how is that going to be used five years, six, eight years
from now with a...new Planning Director, ten years, whatever, saying well, I
don't know what they meant by personal and business uses. Is that gonna be
codified anywhere or is this just examples?
MR. ALUETA: It's, it's-CHAIR COUCH: 'Cause
sure we don't have any more millinery shops or
haberdasheries. . . .(Laughter). . .
guess I can
MR. ALUETA: If you, if you, if you look at the definition itself and
read it. It does kinda give you that laundry list. It just puts it under there.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: And it says, primary...means establishments that offer specialized goods
and service frequently purchased by individual customers and businesses,
examples including barber shops and beauty salons, medical, dental or similar
health care services, massage services, photography laboratories--which I'm not
sure if that still exists--and studios, financial institutions--so going back to your
banks, credit card--financial institutions, tailor, seamstress businesses, post office
and parcel delivery, travel agencies, laundromat and printing and duplicating
shops. And so that's not...again, it's examples of and so it gives the Director
some leeway if something comes in very similar to it that we...that he'd be able
to still say, yeah, that's, that's a personal business services. And we feel that
based on our...the laundry list in the sample, that table that I presented to the
Commission, we went over that with the Director. But primarily went over with
administrative...the zoning administrator who does make the...who makes the
call on what's allowed and that's...those were the uses that he would eliminate
from the laundry list and say, yeah, that qualifies as personal business services or
any one of the other definitions. If you also notice that we did amend one of the
definitions. Besides adding, we added entertainment establishments, recycling
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collection centers and then redemption centers. We also amended the definition
for eating and drinking establishments and education, specialized so if, if you look
on Page 2. And that was kinda based on . .(coughs).. . excuse me...based on
what's happening now but also based on the comments from the Planning
Commission. And that was the, the intent was, again, not to... so we don't forget
anybody. So it's, so it's not forgotten and it's, it is codified in some fashion.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. All right, I'll open it up to the Members. We'll go this...the
other direction this time. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Pass.
CHAIR COUCH: Pass, okay. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Pass.
CHAIR COUCH: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I guess updating Turkish baths. . .(Laughter). . . I
never heard of one, seen one. I know it was on Vineyard Street or something way
back. I read the minutes . ..(laughter). . . the Planning Commission. Anyways,
but I'm looking at the permitted uses. Remember I touched upon business with
residential dwelling in conjunction and connection, I see here on Page 3 where it
is not a permitted use in B-2s. Did you not mention that it was... you said it was
addressed in B-2s. And, and to promote mixed-use type examples-MR. ALUETA: Mixed-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But is this what I'm reading? 19.18.02 [sic]
Permitted uses.
MR. ALUETA: Yes, under Page 8.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Eight?
MR. ALUETA: Eight. Okay. again, going back to the zoning, the purpose of zoning is
this is a business-owned area.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
MR. ALUETA: So it's not a residential area. And so...when you inject it, the primary
purpose of the property or the building needs to be the business. And if it's a
residence, it should be accessory to it. So we've added it as an accessory use
where it's one or more dwelling units and it has to be located above or below the
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first floor of a permitted use. So if somebody had--and my favorite is--a comic
store on the retail first floor, you know the proprietor could live upstairs or
seamstress downstairs had a shop, they live upstairs. And you, you are seeing
some...places being marketed in that fashion so we're recognizing that. Maui
Lani for one which is totally different but on Lower Main--I mean, not Lower
Main--Mill Street, if you...those shops where they have the retail on the bottom
and then they have all...those are all apartments. And that's how they were sold
originally. My understanding is that you basically bought almost like a
townhouse. You bought the, the retail end you bought the little two, two-bedroom
apartment above it. And that's how it was marketed originally.
CHAIR COUCH: And we have some of those new in Kihei on the corner of Lipoa Street
and South Kihei Road. Is that...what district is that? Is that B-2 or B-1 or...
MR. ALUETA: Well, let me look at my map. . . .(Laughter). . . That's on Lipoa, you
said?
CHAIR COUCH: Lipoa...on the corner of Lipoa and South Kihei Road. It's very, very
well done and, and a nice setup. . . .(Pause). . . Or did I just rat out somebody?
.(Laughs).
MR. ALUETA: I'll get back to you.
CHAIR COUCH: All right, no worries.
MR. ALUETA: Okay.
CHAIR COUCH: Let's see, Ms. Cochran, did that answer your question or...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Where's...like a farmer's market type venue?
Is that addressed in here for permitted use? Is that a general...
CHAIR COUCH: Department?
MS. MCLEAN: That is a use that we're going to be addressing as a standalone issue for
farmers' markets and open markets or swap meets. We felt that because
it's...there's enough concern about those uses going on now because they've been
a number of issues brought up to the Planning Department lately about farmers'
markets and open markets in different areas in the County and what different
operators are, or proposed operators, have been told, it's something we wanna
look at. We first need to define that use and we...define both uses, farmers'
market and open market or swap meet. And then look at all of our districts, not
just these business districts but also the BCT district, look at all of the districts
and make a recommendation as to how they should be permitted... in, in, in each
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of the districts. So that's something that the Department's going to initiate and
take through the Planning Commissions and bring back to Council 'cause right
now they're not identified as, you know, an expressed permitted use. Some of
them have been looking at, oh well, we're like a grocery store or we're like this or
we're like that. But the problem comes especially within our small towns like in
Makawao where you have businesses that are paying rent and paying utilities and
following their Country Town design guidelines. And then you have operators
who don't have any of those expenses. They just pay whatever they need to for
their tent for that day. We need to reconcile those concerns. And also looking at
farmers' markets selling produce and agricultural products either produced in the
County or produced in the state as something separate from an open market where
you might have jewelry, or crafts, or other things being sold. So that's a bigger
issue that we are taking on as a separate, a separate effort.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And also just a follow-up, I know
within Parks and Rec. talking about the portable lunch wagon type thing, is that
gonna be sorta addressed on the bigger level, too, at all? Was that looked at or
going to be looked at? No?
MS. MCLEAN: That hasn't got...that hasn't come up on our radar. That's more of a
concession rather than...a permanent permitted use.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I guess I'm picturing we had...a lot of us had just
come back from Portland, Oregon and their city blocks there that actually are just
bumper to bumper with these lunch wagons. And they're really, I mean, great
venues, put out some good food and it's...they look more on a permanent basis
but, you know, something like that, it drums up a lotta...you know, small business
opportunities. And so just wondering if we were to delve into that type of, you
know, venue if there would be a little area somewhere in our, you know, rules to,
to allow it or not allow it. But I thought it was a very interesting thing that they
do there in Portland. It seemed to be, you know, very successful. So, thank you.
MR. ALUETA: If I may that...for...yeah, one, your...it's in the B-3 district.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay.
MR. ALUETA: It's for your thing. So that's-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You're jumping ahead.
MR. ALUETA: --on Lipoa, that's why it's apartment. With regards to the, the roadside
vendors, those are, those are managed by the Finance Department.
They're...they're...gotten their vendor...the vendor's license are issued through
them...through there. And there's already a statute within the Code that allows
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them to, to vend from any on street parking, from a parking spot or parking lot
and that's all legal parking lot. And that's how it's regulated currently. And as,
as our Deputy said that, you know, we are looking at different definitions that
we're gonna put out to the general public and through the commissions to talk
about with regards to farmers' market or a open market and then a swap meet.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
MR. ALUETA: And then that way we can establish different criterias for each one as
well as parking, look at what the different parking standards should be, if there
should be any at all on those things.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Yeah, just two, two things. Trying to get in my mind the areas of
Maui that we're talking about when we're talking about PC-5. And I think I
heard Deputy Director mention like Makawao town?
MS. MCLEAN: Makawao town would be Country Town Business, BCT.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Country Town...
MS. MCLEAN: Not B-2.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Can you give us an idea of what you're talking about with this
Community Business District?
MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Just any area so we have a visual.
MS. MCLEAN: Wailuku town.
MR. ALUETA: No, that's MRA.
MS. MCLEAN: So you're gonna pick up one of the Dead Sea Scrolls?
CHAIR COUCH: . .(Chuckles). . .
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Oh, oh.
MS. MCLEAN: I do know that the area in Wailuku where Ba Le is...
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VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Uh-huh.
MS. MCLEAN: That's B-2 according to these maps.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, so a lot of areas such as, like, Lipoa or like, say...your shopping
centers in Kihei, your strip malls down there, are all in the B-2 districts. The vast
majority of the commercial districts within Lahaina are also, from our zoning
maps, indicate that they are all...most of 'em are B-2. There's very...like I said,
very little B-1 but B-2 is the most dominant type of commercial generic zoning
district.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: When you talk about the next one which is Central Business
District-1"m just trying to get, you know, in my mind the different things we're
talking about--that would be confined to?
MR. ALUETA: That was confined primarily to Wailuku, B-3 is.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Interesting. What about Kahului?
MR. ALUETA: It's mostly B-2 and industrial.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Interesting.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah. B-3-VICE-CHAIR BAISA: How this is categorized.
MR. ALUETA: The...the story was, is that the County...there was no way to build a
nine-story building in Kahului.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: .. .(Laughs).. .
MR. ALUETA. So...I mean in Wailuku. And so when the County Building was built,
they wanted to create a new business district but you couldn't just create a new
business district for one lot for the County so they had to zone other parcels at the
same time as to be B-3. So that way the County...that way Wailuku could get a
nine-story building. And so much of the . . .(clears throat). . . so much of the, so
much of this area was zoned B-3. In fact, I used to own a small little postage
stamp house about... the lot was 2,100 square feet but it was B-3. So if you can
imagine me trying to put a . . .(laughter). . . ...so again, much of the land that
was zoned B-3 in Wailuku was automatically rezoned when the MRA and
the...County Council adopted the redevelopment plan, it automatically rezoned
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much of the B-3 lands that were in Wailuku town. But I, I believe the County
Building and One Main Plaza is the few lots, I think, that have B-3 zoning still.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Thank you.
MR. ALUETA: Just to give you an idea.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA Thank you. I mean it's, you know, it's really hard to be looking
at these ideas and limitations when we don't have a visual of the areas 'cause, you
know, the areas have changed a whole lot I'm sure than when this all began. But
another thing that I just wanted to bring up, Chair, and I understand we're not
making any commitments today and we're just gathering information for, for
further discussion, but, you know, we mentioned in the B-1...PC-6, B-1 that we
might be adding in there personal and business uses. And then we also talk about
doing it in PC-5 which is B-2. And while I don't have any, any concerns about
what we're talking about putting in B-2, I have a little bit of concern about using
that term in B-1 which is neighborhood business because some of the things that
we're gonna allow in B-2, I don't know that we wanna do in B-1. And
particularly when we use this broad definition of personal and business uses, I
mean, a lot of things that people might have concerns having real close to them
and their homes might creep into our neighborhoods. So we might wanna think
about this a little bit more.
CHAIR COUCH: Yeah, I, I kinda agree with you when...after reading the definition of
personal businesses. What we can do is what they've done in several of these
table entries is to provide criteria or limitations if we decide to put it in B-1. We
can say except for this, this and this kind of business.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Yeah, just something to, you know, think about as we prepare to
take action.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: I have couple more questions. Department or Corp. Counsel, if
we...when we put the stacking back in, what happens to special uses that are
defined in B-1? Are they now regular uses in B-2 or does the stacking not take
into consideration that?
it
MR. ALUETA: It, it--oh, go ahead. Okay, so I guess he would say what
normally is but most of the time those special uses, things that are listed as special
use, are listed as being an allowed use so that would override it. So like, say, it's
in, in the B-1 district, a certain sized TVR is considered to be a special use. But if
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you look at the allowed uses in the B-2, it allows for larger or more rooms or units
in the B-2 as an allowed use.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: So...
CHAIR COUCH: And, and then when we stack, we're going B-1, 2 and 3 and that's it.
Business...town and country, business country town is separate and SBR is
separate. They're, they're not included in the stacking?
MR. ALUETA: I, I did not. That was not my intent to the...because they did not exist
either.
CHAIR COUCH: Right. Okay.
MR. ALUETA: Okay, so one thing.
MR. HOPPER: Yes, Mr. Chair, you would, you would only be adding in the uses, the
permitted uses from those other sections as I understand it 'cause it says, any use
permitted in a B-1 neighborhood business district is also listed as a permitted use.
And if. if some of the listed uses in that new district happened to also be special
uses in the old district, that's fine. But I don't think just 'cause something was a
special use in, in, in B-1, for example, that that would automatically be a
permitted use in B-2.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. HOPPER: I think all the permitted uses would be but we can alter that as, as the
body wishes to.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay, thank you. Members, any other questions? If not, I have a few
more. Quickly, entertainment establishment, your definition there seems to be a
bit vague. I mean, almost anything can be considered an...entertainment
establishment there then. Any comments on that? For instance, if you decided to,
to make the Puunene Raceway area B district and does that count? Do drag races
count as an entertainment establishment? . .(Pause). . You know, it's just
something to look at when, when we come back and, and, and take a look at it.
The other issue would be in general office. And I saw in the minutes--and I'm not
quite sure why they threw that in there--but "and data networking facilities",
there's all kinds of data facilities and what not. So I don't know that that
necessarily needed to be spelled out. Any comments? You were at the meeting.
Did...

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

August 29, 2011

MR. ALUETA: What it is, there was a specific request by the, the Commission, by one
of the commissioners.
CHAIR COUCH: By one of the commissioners, yeah. I saw that.
MR. ALUETA: So that's, that's why it was...uses.
CHAIR COUCH: I was just curious as to why that was thrown in there. It's not, not, not
that big of a deal.
MR. ALUETA: In...
CHAIR COUCH: And you still have under...in Page 5, amusement and recreational
activities conducted wholly within the completely enclosed building. What is the
intent there to preclude? I'm. I'm thinking of something like our, our, our
miniature golf course out in Maalaea. If something like that would not be allowed
in B-2, is that what you're saying? 'Cause that is a amusement and recreational
activity but then yet you also allow football stadiums and baseball stadiums, I
believe.
MR. ALUETA: I... again I believe that it's a carryover from the existing... law. So it's
up to you if you wanted to eliminate it.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: I do wanna make a note that in looking at, in looking at the B-3 district-okay, I'll wait. ...(Laughter).. .
CHAIR COUCH: And then further on you, you talk about marinas on Page 6. Do we
have any kind of jurisdiction over marinas? I mean, I'm assuming a marina is
where you park boats in the water as opposed to something like Valley Isle
Marine which...that you sell boats.
MR. ALUETA: Right.
CHAIR COUCH: Or store boats.
MR. ALUETA: This...the onshore facilities such as you have at Kihei Boat Ramp.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: That would be the area that might have some of...that has the
B...zoning for it as well as, say, like Maalaea. So like, you'd have like, say,
Buzz's, you know, restaurant or any of the sorta uses that would support the
marina.
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CHAIR COUCH: Okay. That's, that's good. You talk about pet shops, not involving
the boarding of animals. Question I have there is, don't...I mean, what do they do
with the animals at night that they're selling? And I, I know that one of the newer
pet stores does apparently some sort of veterinary services or at least flu... or
whatever kind of shots they give the dogs and cats. I don't think cats but...
MR. ALUETA: Yeah... again, that, that was a carryover. It did get some discussion by
the Commission, especially on Lanai. Some felt that it should be some but...there
was some...also there was some feelings of they didn't want...they also wanted to
exclude it on Molokai. So it kind of...it deals more with the boarding of animals,
not, say, the animals that are for sale. Some of the other things that we...I, I
believe it's in the B, B-2 district where some of the restrictions...but in some of
the Codes would have restrictions on the number of employees-CHAIR COUCH: Uh-huh.
MR. ALUETA: And stuff like that. We...those things we kinda eliminated from
the...'cause we, we really couldn't find the rationale for it and so we had to...we
felt had to be on some kind of firm footing and, and the Commission also agreed
with that. But, you know, there wasn't really any direction, I guess you could say,
by the Commission on some things that clearly was unclear as to what, what was
the original intent. And...but we didn't wanna remove it unless we had a clear
reason or a good reason to remove it. And the Commission didn't have any
direction for us either.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Members, B-2 is gonna be our most populated or, or most
liberal of districts I think. When, when you go through and take a look at it and
come back with your stuff in writing, keep in mind that that is the bread and
butter of our, of our business communities so do have a lot of diligent thought put
into what we wanna change in there. Let's now go to--unless everybody has-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I got...yeah.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay, Ms. Cochran?

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Where would pawn shops fall into play here? Is that
antique shops or...?
MR. ALUETA: It's general retailing.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: It's banking.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Bank...oh. . .(Laughter). . . Financial institution.
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MR. ALUETA: Yeah. It, it, it could be, it could be considered, you know, financial
institution. Or it could be retailing. So it's kind of a mixed use so it would be
under general merchandising.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: General merchandising.
MR. ALUETA: And, and personal business services.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And, you know, you brought up, Chair, you
brought up the point about bank-CHAIR COUCH: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --versus credit-CHAIR COUCH: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --union. Is that now under the financial buildings,
No. 51? Would that be...
MR. ALUETA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah. I mean long ago in the history of, of the history of banking, you
know, it was S&Ls provided your, your, your loans for your homes, your credit
unions were your, your, your consumer loans such as for your...your Christmas
accounts and your auto loans, and your banks were your commercial banks where
you did your business...businesses did your commercial. And they're all
separated out after, you know, after the Great Depression. They separate our
financial and since deregulation has occurred, all of the banking regulations that
was instituted to prevent the Great Depression has slowly been eliminated. And
so now you have this what you call cross migration between bank...between
credit unions, savings and loans and commercial banks. So now you're seeing
these integration and, you know...but so now it's just financial institutions.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MS. MCLEAN: Actually where you see financial institutions from the numbered list,
we're getting away from the numbered list and moving into the table instead.
And in the table we have general office and general office is defined as facilities
used for the practice of a profession, the conduct of public administration or the
administration of business or industry. Examples include the offices for
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government agencies, non-profit organizations, financial, insurance and real estate
companies, professional practices, except medical and dental and television and
radio stations.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So a little more...generalized permitted uses
which will incorporate a broad range of diversity.
MS. MCLEAN: Exactly. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Got it. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Just a couple more things that I think really are anachronisms.
One is sanitariums. Kula, Kula San's been gone forever. And dance halls.
. . .(Chuckles). . . I don't know that I want dance halls, okay. . . .(Laughter). . .
CHAIR COUCH: . . .(Chuckles). . . We'll take...yeah...go ahead.
MS. MCLEAN: There's also a couple comments I wanted to offer for the Committee's
consideration is in none of the districts are carwashes specified. There're couple
places where carwashes are, are, are prohibited. But I think in B-2 adding
carwashes to automobile service stations might be warranted. I'd also like to
suggest that same language about vent pipes and chimneys and small-scale energy
systems be added so that we're still within the overall height limit. And then one
of the last permitted uses, it says veterinary uses. In B-3 it says veterinary
services and that might be a better term, veterinary services rather than veterinary
uses. And that actually might cover where pet shops don't involve the boarding
of animals. I suppose veterinary services could include the boarding of animals
and treatment of animals.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.

ITEM NO. 7: B-3 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT (c.c.

No. 11-85)

CHAIR COUCH: All right, Members, let's move on to No. 7 which is PC-7 which is
B-3, Central Business District and according to Mr. Alueta it seems like there's
only two lots in the County. . .(Laughter). . .
MR. ALUETA: No. Well, I told you that the Lipoa one--
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CHAIR COUCH: Oh yeah, I'm sorry, yeah.
MR. ALUETA: No, there's quite a few on... in B, B-3 but according to our zoning map.
Just to clarify from...the way the existing B-3 was set up originally, right, it
was...it actually was an exclusive, said what you can't. So kinda like how
Mike... Councilmember White wanted it where it says what you can't do. It said
you can do all... you can do everything that's allowed in the B-1, B-2 except
these. Okay, so in this case...what we did was we went back through the list of
what was allowed in the B-1 and B-2 and we put them in B-3 and we eliminate
that list. And we didn't...and we eliminated stacking. So in B-3 the list is the
list. It does not go back and make reference to B-1 or B-2, okay. And so...and
because B-3 was the only district that was written that way which was opposite.
And so we're trying to make everybody make all of the uses or all of the, the
Codes the same way which is we list what you want to have in those districts.
Again, this is primarily your more higher density, downtowns. I'm not sure if
Kihei...what area of Kihei is downtown but it was pretty much exclusively for
that where you wanted to have your high-rise office buildings and you kinda
wanted to exclude your, your gas, gasoline station or wrecking yard or anything
else like that. Or your... it wasn't necessarily appropriate to have your Home
Depot, I guess you could say, in that...those areas. We'd also injected or
clarified, you know, the mix using of...mixed use of, of transient vacation rentals.
And we also...sorry...clarified a lot of the small-scale energy systems,
consolidated the, the development standards into a table. We also put mortuaries
in as a special use. And...let's see...we pretty much again went through and
added only the uses that we felt were gonna be compatible with that downtown-although we did again...we did add recycling collection centers and redemption
centers. The reason we did that was to accommodate...most of those were for
like Public Works so we felt that we needed to do that. And we
excluded...already was always excluding no automobile repair with regards to
automobile service stations. And that's pretty much it if you have any questions
on that.
CHAIR COUCH: Members, we'll start with Ms. Baisa this time.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Interesting...addition to the permitted uses is drive-ins.
CHAIR COUCH: Drive-in restaurants.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Drive-in restaurants, yeah. So that would cover then all the fast
food kind of things?
MR. ALUETA: Uh-huh.
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VICE-CHAIR BAISA: And it would be allowed in this area? What about things like if
you want to do one in Pukalani or up the hill?
CHAIR COUCH: Would they have to...I guess the question would be, would they have
to be B-3 or special use? But...and-MR. ALUETA: No, no.
CHAIR COUCH: You know, people will say, well, you know, drive-throughs, is that
counted as a drive-in? I do know we do have a similar...we have one in, in Kihei
Outback which you can consider a drive-in 'cause you drive up to the curb and
they bring your food to you.
MR. ALUETA: Right. I think...the reason that . . . (sneezes). . . excuse me. I guess the
reason the way it's spelled out and, and we did it in some areas we didn't use...I
mean we did use personal business services but we, we, we didn't use all of the
new definitions out there that would consolidate some of these things because we
were trying to exclude certain uses. Kinda like how Ms. Baisa said earlier that
she didn't wanna even put in personal business services in B-1. It includes some
uses that maybe we don't want.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Right.
MR. ALUETA: And so if you don't want them then we need to list out the ones that you
do want. And so...and the same thing goes with the B-3, is that B-3 is a
high...it's supposed to be a higher density commercial area and you don't want to
have some of the uses that you list in B-2 to be in. And that's how it was
originally. So if you look at the old Code, all those uses, like it says automobile
repair shops, automobile painting and steam cleaning, automobile upholstery
shops, awning and canvas stores, equipment rentals yards, hatcheries, lumber
yards. At some point somewhere along the way those uses were either listed in
the B-1 or the B-2 district as an allowed use. And they were trying to make it
clear that, hey, we don't want that in these, in this higher definition. And so I had
to go back and just say...like plumbing stores, like plumbing shops. I mean that
would be considered general retail. To me...or specialized retail so...but they
obviously didn't want that so I had to eliminate any possibility that something like
that could be stuck into the B-3 district.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Yeah, I'm not as familiar with all of these, you know, different
designations and what is allowed and not allowed but is there any place else in
here that drive-in or drive-through restaurants are allowed?
MR. ALUETA: General retail. So--
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VICE-CHAIR BAISA: That's considered general retail.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: So would be...you know, the, the description that you gave of a
B-3 area tells me...we talked about Wailuku and, you know, these more
populated areas and of course, I represent Upcountry. So I'm thinking, you know,
what are the limitations we're gonna put up there as we grow? 'Cause you know
we are growing fast and we have a lot of population. So we'd be, we'd be
allowed then, say, to have a drive-in restaurant in, in Kula.
MR. ALUETA: If, if eating and...drinking establishment-VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Yeah.
MR. ALUETA: --is listed as an allowed use, then potentially, yeah, you could have a, a
drive-through if it's a listed as a...you know, that general term of eating and
drinking establishments-VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Right.
MR. ALUETA: --is, is, is...put it into a B-1 or a B-2 or a BCT zoning, then you could
have it there.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: But right now it's not in. I only see it now in this B-3.
MR. ALUETA: Eating and drinking establishments are in B-2.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: No, no, the drive-in specifically. Why is that?
CHAIR COUCH: Especially since you have right below it eating and drinking
establishments.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
MS. MCLEAN: Drive-in is also in B-2. Drive-in is also in B-2.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Is in B-2?
MS. MCLEAN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Okay. I just wanna make sure that we're not limiting
ourselves...as the growth occurs Upcountry. Thank you.
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MS. MCLEAN: Yeah, it's...even though you would think that the districts have more
intensive uses as you go from 1 to 2 to 3, B-3 actually...it allows greater height
and there are a couple of uses that are more intensive but actually the list in B-3 is
shorter than the B-2 list.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Yeah, it's a shorter list to look at. I guess everything stands out
more.
MS. MCLEAN: Right. ... (Laughter).. .
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: All right, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, just trying to get clarification in regards to
automobile service stations which I presume are where you can go and pump gas
for your car? And then further down there's gasoline retailing. Is that more like
Maui Oil type company? 'Cause then we get gas at service stations so I was just
wanting a little bit of distinguishing.
MR. ALUETA: Can you, can you...
MS. MCLEAN: Gasoline retailing is specific just to fueling. It can be fueling passenger
cars like, like a Minit Stop or like Calasa. Automobile services can be fueling-MR. ALUETA: Oil change.
MS. MCLEAN: Oil change, services, minor engine repair, minor repair of engine parts.
CHAIR COUCH: All those that says auto.
MS. MCLEAN: Rotation of tires.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But, but, the...the next...yeah, area says, no
automobile repair so I was...that's where I was-MS. MCLEAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: -- kinda confused, I guess.
MR. ALUETA: What it...it allows for automobile service stations but it says no
automobile...it...there-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Repair.
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MR. ALUETA: The limitation was no automobile repair.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MR. ALUETA: So you could do a service like, you know, how you used to come in and
they check your oil and rather than just gas and go, as opposed to...like retailing
of gasoline.
CHAIR COUCH: So oil change and lube, tire change, that kind of thing is okay?
MR. ALUETA: Yeah. But like if you had to...engine repair or like your car broke down
and you need, you know, a new A/C system...a full, a full service garage
basically, it would not be. It would not be allowed in there because you intend to
have a full-service garage is gonna have storage of vehicles and storage of...more
storage of parts and stuff like that. And that's what they were trying to exclude.
Again, this is kind of a...it's kinda like I say if you look at the...it excluded
automobile repair shops and garages. So we wanted to allow for the definition...I
mean of, of...automobile...service stations, right, which is more of a less intense
use than a repair shop.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. What else? Oh, the, the property next door,
is that B-3? The old post office, do you know in your map in your head?
. . . (Laughs). . . Offhand...no, you don't...okay, never mind. Just curious. And
this is where we address, nicely enough, the living and sleeping quarters and
business use too, the accessory dwelling. And that's in here, the B-3 ordinance.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MR. ALUETA: One or more dwelling units, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. Okay, good. Thank you, Chair. That's all.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. Now along those lines before I go to Mr. White, we
talked about in our, in our meetings, Mr. Alueta, about a possible single-family
dwelling on the lot next to a business you, you mentioned or, I guess,
Mr. Spence...mentioned a business that kinda has that situation. Are we
excluding that now or is, is that one going to be...become non-conforming?
MR. ALUETA: We've always excluded it. It's, it's, it's only been, it was only allowed
in the B-1 district.
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CHAIR COUCH: But if-MR. ALUETA: And also B-2 but the limitation was that, you know, if we have a singlefamily house and then have a business store separate...free-standing single-family
home and then have a business building in the front.
CHAIR COUCH: Right.
MR. ALUETA: It allowed for it in the B-1 district and the B-2 district but via the
stacking, okay.
CHAIR COUCH: But not any more because we've taken that out now but you...in both
B-1 and B-2 you say, located above or below the first floor of the, of the
permitted use.
MR. ALUETA: Correct, but it's still...B-1 still lists a single-family dwelling, one singlefamily dwelling per lot and then it has provisions. Provided the lot
is... substantially large to provide a lot area of 6,000 square feet for the, for
the... after the area of the business parking and other accessory areas of the
business have been subtracted. And that's, that's existing language.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: Okay, that was just copied over and it used to be under P of the old
Code in, in B-1. And that was so--typically I'm trying to think of where such a
use may be, down in Kaohu Street. You know, where you have the store in the
front and the single-family in the back. Some of those neighborhoods, like you
have the shiatsu massage place, they have a little small store front and then they
there's a small single-family dwelling in the back right, right down here below the
County Building. And that's...and I think the...originally the...on Market Street
in South Market Street area, you had some areas like that too where you had a, a
small upholstery shop right next to the Wailuku Gym. It used to be a upholstery
shop and then right behind it is a small single-family house and that's kinda how
it was set up.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: God, I'm showing my age.
CHAIR COUCH: Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, just a fast question. Let's see, service
stations. I'm, I'm looking at, like, like say, the Minit Stop. All they do is pump
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gas and on, on the side they sell merchandise, food stuff. So how do
you...categorize those type of establishments?
MR. ALUETA: Where they have a gasoline retailing?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. ALUETA: That's fine. And then it's basically general retail.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: General retail.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah. I'm sorry, general merchandising. So that's allowed, as long as
they don't do automobile repair shops. And that's...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thanks.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay, Members, that's it for B-3 unless you have any other questions
and then we'll go quickly with a discussion about B-R, Business Resort
Commercial District.

ITEM NO. 8:

B-R RESORT COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (C.C. No. 11-104)

CHAIR COUCH: Department?
MR. ALUETA: Thank you. Again, just...we tried to take out...it was kinda a lot. This
kinda overwhelmed the Planning Commissions with this many bills so please bear
with me. I understand. It's a...and B-R, again, is, is kind of...interesting zoning
category. The purpose and intent was to provide a commercial retail space that
catered toward the tourism industry or the short-term visitor and primarily they're
located within your...near your destination area resorts such as Wailea, Kaanapali
and Wailea. And, and it's kinda like Neighborhood Business was supposed to
service your...your single-family area or surrounding area, this was supposed
to...service the surrounding resort community. As time has gone on, you know, it
has kinda morphed into sort of your general retail and, and the Department's
druthers, I guess, at the time was we'd prefer to eliminate this whole district and
just fold it into a B-2 category. However, there is existing B-R and it's...at this
time, at this current time, we're just trying to update it and make it fit in with the
existing Code as part of our update. So again going in with the table format. We
also tried to inject a mixed use again with regards to transient vacation rentals.
It's almost kinda giving...you know, I don't wanna say hotel zoning but it gives it
some...a good, a good chunk of TVR units to be allowed in the B-R. You, you
see the uses are primarily...again, it's something you would typically find in a, in
a resort area or sometimes you find them as an accessory to a existing hotel, for
large hotels. But these are intended for those areas to service maybe... smaller
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hotels that didn't have these as an accessory. Provide for real estate offices.
That's, say, like say timeshare offices. Right now you can't do a real estate office
within the hotel unless you're selling...only if you're selling units within that
hotel. And so if a real... if in the resort area they typically deal with multiple
resort properties and so they would typically if they're...if that's what they
specialize in, they would typically be located in this B-R district. Taxi cab,
U-drive, again, travel agencies and similar services like that. Interestingly enough
some of the things that we've had come in as an accessory use to get permitted
was...we had to have the gymnasium...the gym out in Kaanapali ...and so we
showed that, you know, it had to go before the Planning...at the time it was the,
the Planning Commission. Interestingly enough they, they didn't have too much
of a problem with us having the Planning Director--I'm sorry. This still
isn't...oh, okay, I'm sorry. It is the...still the Commission for similar uses.
MS. MCLEAN: It's not on Maui.
MR. ALUETA: No, oh...
CHAIR COUCH: It's not on Maui.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
CHAIR COUCH: We're Maui.
MR. ALUETA: Somehow, somehow we snuck...we were able to get that for the B-R. It
was very limited area. And I think because maybe on Maui, I think it was
because we've had to take it...we've had to take several different commercial
uses to the Commission to get them approved. And I think they are pretty
confident that the, the Director can make those calls.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Members, any questions? Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. You know, we're discussing all this,
yeah. And come to the B-R, has the Department talked to Finance, Real Property
Tax side, in regards to how do you tax? You tax the property because there's
different tax rates for different uses?
MR. ALUETA: They...yeah...they...I mean I'm not sure I...what your...would they
classify as an apartment or a hotel?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Or, or the business establishment.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: You know, I look at it, you know, you tax a
property but should a business establishment within a property, say, rather
than...rather than be taxed as a hotel rate, you tax on the business rate.
Something like that. Any conversation with Real Property Tax?
MR. ALUETA: No. No conversation with Real Property Tax on that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Maybe that's what we should have. The Real
Property Tax over here to give us some kind idea. We may say okay but in the
end, you know, the unintended consequence may affect this County. I don't
know.
CHAIR COUCH: I, I agree although they do sort of the highest and best use so if it's a
hotel in a B-R, for instance, your transient vacation rental. That sounds like it
would get a--but that's a good question--should get a hotel.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: 'Cause you're talking about zoning now, yeah.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah. I'm just curious on, Councilmember Pontanilla, what, what is the
rate difference between a business...I mean the valuation is gonna be the
valuation. So if the property is valued at $1 million, it's valued at $1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, I, I know what's-MR. ALUETA: What is its percentage rate-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --it's going to tax the total property.
MR. ALUETA: I mean I know the TVR--I'm sorry, I know that timeshares are taxed at a
dramatically different rate.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MR. ALUETA: I know that, I know that B&Bs are taxed at a lower rate than
residential...4 percent...or something like that. And improved residential is at
one rate. So is, is, is improved commercial that much different from...improved
hotel rate? I mean I don't know if there's a significant difference.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, and I think we should have them here to
properly, you know, probably explain to us, especially in, in regards to, I guess,
business resort areas because it may have some implication on real property tax
issues. I don't know. I'm just asking the question.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, the was a good question.
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CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. Just to shed a little light on it. We have the
Plantation Inn in Lahaina. It's now zoned hotel and we're paying the hotel rate.
Previously it was zoned B-2 and we were paying the commercial rate. So it, it
does impact. You know, Joe brings up a very good question. If we are allowing
hotel use in any of these, you know, B-2, B-3 or, or B-R areas, how are they
gonna get taxed? Do they get taxed at, at the lower rate or do they get taxed the
same as the same use in a different zoning area? So the question I had was where,
where are these...B-R zones?
MR. ALUETA: If you go out, if you go out to Kaanapali on the left-hand side just as you
pass the first entrance into Kaanapali, that strip mall that's on the left-hand side.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, that's B-R.
MR. ALUETA: That's all B-R.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: What about Whaler's Village?
MR. ALUETA: Whaler's Village is, I believe, B-R as well as I think the Shops of
Wailea might also be B-R. I'll, I'll double check. Could...it could also be B,
B-2. But it's normally... Shops of Wailea and also Whaler's Village in the B-R.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. The other question I had was whether or not you
guys have had concerns raised about height limits or anything of that sort. As
we're looking at business commercial development around resort areas whether
there, there's been a concern about the 35-foot height being too constraining for
certain uses.
MR. ALUETA: With regards to, to the B-R or...?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
MR. ALUETA: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
MR. ALUETA. No, one of the things that we have eliminated, if you notice in all
references, height and everything else prior to that used to be stories with a
maximum.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Uh-huh.
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MR. ALUETA: So, well, what we've done is we've eliminated the...we, we eliminated
the reference to stories. So, and, and, and that's pretty...and that's also another
consistency that we've done throughout all the Code. And that is if somebody, if
somebody comes in and they, you know, wants to put like...in a residential
district, it's 30...two stories, or 30 feet. They wanna put in three stories but it'd
still be 30 feet house. We don't care. The same thing with...in the hotel district.
It goes...we're, we're proposing to go again with height. It says 12 stories and it
has a maximum height. If somebody wants to put 15 stories, within the same
height limit, we don't care. And so we're looking at the same thing that...for the
commercial districts. If somebody wants to put in...have more floors, you know,
just a little shorter--might limit your clientele--but, you know, you, you-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, I'm just, I'm just thinking that if somebody
wanted to come in and do a theater similar to what the Maui Arts and Cultural
Center has, there's no way they can do it with this kind of height limit. And I'm
just wondering if you've had any...I don't know what Ulalena's height was where
they had to go down, down a bit to have the building that would accommodate
their height needs. But...
MR. ALUETA: No, yeah, we, we haven't had. The only area the issue...height is, is
another bill that you have before you which is the public/quasi-public district
where you continue to get height variances for that. For gymnasiums, that's
where you would have your, your typical...and so we, we're, we have a bill up
here right now for...to modify for that. But we've never had...I'm not familiar
with any height limitation with regards to the B-R or any of the business districts.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So would it. would it make sense for us to put in certain
instances where the heights are...are changed for certain types of uses like
gymnasiums. I'm not, I'm not suggesting there's a gymnasium that's gonna go in
a B-R district but...
MR. ALUETA: We, again, we would, we'd rather see it...you...I guess you could if
you, you could put it under the notes and exceptions.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Uh-huh.
MR. ALUETA: And then just like how we've had an exception to the height with
regards to, you know, roof top antennas or, you know, or, or, or PV panels by
giving `em that bonus. And typically that's a roof and then we add, you know,
you can.. it's...and it's more to...because you're trying to accommodate
a...accommodate or, or encourage something. So in our case we're trying to
encourage, you know, use of photovoltaic panels without dinging you if you have
to tilt it up. We're trying to encourage you to put a...small rooftop windmill
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without dinging you for, you know, and giving you...to try and encourage it. So
if your intent is to...I mean, again, either encourage that use, then yes. So just
gotta remember that it would encourage that use if you, if you give them...if you
give that special bonus so...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right. Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. White. You'd mentioned, Mr. Alueta, that there
aren't that, that many B-R districts and you considered just getting rid of it. How
difficult would that be? Would that save us more time and headache? And just
would it be an issue as far as converting who, whomever is B-R to B-2, say?
Or...
MR. ALUETA: It would require us to do, one, to comprehensively identify all the B-Rs.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: I think that's...I think that we do have that skill. But, and...it would
require a bill that basically all it would say is that all lands zoned B-R are now
zoned B-2, most likely. That would be our recommendation.
CHAIR COUCH: I'm just thinking that if instead of going through this exercise for this,
would it be better to do that? What, what would be the...recommendation of the
Department be, Ms. McLean?
MS. MCLEAN: For the time being, I think it's just safer and more responsible to leave it
as it is.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MS. MCLEAN: We don't wanna change the zoning on business owners without fully
understanding what that might mean for them.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay, that's good. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And just curious, looking at permitted
uses and I know we're trying to use broader terms to incorporate, you know, more
diversity here. But the massage parlors and bath house thing, I mean, we call `em
spas I think nowadays. . . Aaughter). . . I mean it's like calling these night clubs
discos. You know, I mean . . .(laughter). . . we just don't do that. Anyways, it's
a minor thing but I thought it'd just be more in line with our lingo today. And I'm
just curious if activity like sports rental type places are incorporated...I'm trying
to figure out which heading that would go under...you know...rental of snorkels,
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surf, scuba, things of that nature. Is that...you know, I know they're permitted
uses here 'cause I see them. But I don't see it.
MS. MCLEAN: There were two comments that we wanted to offer. One was the
suggestion of adding personal businesses and services. That would take
care...and that would actually...we could delete some of these really specific
little uses. But for example, beauty salons aren't, aren't listed and you'd certainly
have that in a...as a resort support business. And then some type of amusement
or recreational enterprises that we could take from one of the other zoning
districts.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MS. MCLEAN: To cover that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's...yeah-MS. MCLEAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's a good addition. Also something like, I
guess, fitness clubs would fall into that purview, then? That's not...I couldn't
figure out where that would go. And another thing, I'm not sure this is more with,
I guess, the hotel type designation but tennis courts and, like, sports courts. Not
sure if that would be asked to be used in this type of zoning but if so-MS. MCLEAN: These are more free standing enterprises. Tennis courts are usually part
of the hotel property and so they'd be zoned hotel. It would be accessory to the
hotel use. I don't really know that you'd see like a stand-alone tennis court as it's
own business enterprise. These are intended to be just like a stand-alone business
enterprise.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Thank you. That's all, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Along that same line of questioning, what about jewelry
stores? Where would that fit in there because, my gosh, you see those all over the
place.
MR. ALUETA: Specialized clothing?
CHAIR COUCH: No, that's clothes.
MS. MCLEAN: Let's see...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Curio shops?
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CHAIR COUCH: It's not in there.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No more.
MR. ALUETA: Gifts and curios shops? Gift shops?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:: Gift shops.
MR. ALUETA: I think gift and curios shops as I recall.
MS. MCLEAN: It could fall under personal and business services.
CHAIR COUCH: I'm sure this Planning Department might do that but, again, ten years
from now who's, you know, we might wanna be little bit more specific.
MS. MCLEAN: We could clarify that more, yeah.
CHAIR COUCH: Before we get closing down here, Ms. Baisa, do you have any other
comments?
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Nothing more today. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, thank you. Michele's last comment, I
think kinda hit it on the head, stand alone. If we're talking about stand alone,
easy to understand, yeah, what is being done over here. What I talked earlier in
regards to, like say, a hotel property, you know, the hotel is a standalone but first
floor normally you have all these businesses. I don't know if they rent space from
the hotel but, you know, again, stand alone I think is probably what we gotta
concentrate on. Thank you.
MS. MCLEAN: Right. Those would be zoned hotel. The whole property would be
zoned hotel so hotel use has those accessory business, support uses, yeah.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Any further questions on B-R? Okay, so what I'd like to do is
defer this matter, all four of these items and then come back, in a couple meetings
and, and see if you can come up with some...your recommended changes and
we'll go right through these. So since we've done all the information gathering
now--and Department, too, if you have some...recommended changes as well--I
would ask that the Members submit those changes to the Committee. That way
we can all share 'em and, and some of the Members who weren't here can take a
look and see what we're...we've been talking about and what you--if you can. If
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you can't, you know, certainly we'll take stuff on the floor as well. But to
expedite the process, now that we've a chance to hear what all the districts are
except for Business...Country Town, that gives us good idea as the overall
package. So without any further comments--oh, one more comment, yeah? Go
ahead.

ACTION: DEFER ALL ITEMS PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.
MR. ALUETA: We do have the BC tables transmitted up to you guys so if you are
bringing this back-CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: is that...
CHAIR COUCH: We'll throw that. . .we'll. . .
MR. ALUETA: 'Cause it is a separate item, maybe you can-CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: If you wanna throw that on to that.
CHAIR COUCH: You bet.
MR. ALUETA: It could be.. .
CHAIR COUCH: Any other further comments, Members? I wanna thank you. We're
running a little late but not too much-I just wanna say
Just...Chair Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
congratulations to Chair Couch and his partner, Bob Carroll, at MEDB's event
this weekend where we had a robotics race and they won, hands down. Gladys
and I, yes, we were the losing team but if you notice, Chair Couch, was sporting
his ball, his trophy. And I'm sporting mine which is much larger. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. With that the meeting is adjourned. ... (gavel).. .
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